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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Bank Respublika OJSC:

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stalements present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial
pesition of Bank Respublika OJSC (the "Bank’) and is subsidiary (together - the “Group®) as at
31 December 2021, and the Group's consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
for ihe year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

What we have audited
The Group's consclidated financial statements comprise:

* Ihe consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2021;

= the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021
= the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended:
= the consclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

+ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs), Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ig sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code), We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the |IESBA Code,

Our audit approach

Chveryiew

+ Overall Group materiality: Azerbaljanl Manats {AZN) 733 thousand,
which represents 5% of profit before tax,

» We have audited the financial statements of the Bank, as well as the
material balances and transactions of subsidiary included in the
consohdated financial stalerments of the Group.

Largnian
BECAinG

= Assessment of expected credit losses (ECL) provision for loans to
customers in accordance with IFRS 9. Financial Instrumants.

PricewatethouseCoopars Audil Ararbaijen LLC
Thee Landmark, Office Plaza |1, 12th Noor, B0A Mizami Streed, A7 1010, Baky, Azarbaian
To+E0d (12) 457 28 15. F: «054 (120 407 74 11, www, e comiaz
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As parl of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of malerial
misstaternent in the consolidated financial stalements. In particular, we considered where management
made subjective judgements; for axample, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently unceriain. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls including, among other matiers,
consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud,

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonatle assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Misstalemants may arise due to frawd or error. They are considered material if individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the aconomic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the consolidated financial stalements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined cerlain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set oul in
ihe table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us lo determine the scope of
our awdil and the nalture, timing and extent of our audi procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, if any, both individually and in aggregate on the consolidated financial statements as a

whole.
COvarall Group materiality AZN T332 thousand
How we determined it 5% of profit before tax

We chose profit before tax as the benchmark because, in our
vigw, il is the banchmark against which the performance of the
Group is most commonty measured by users and is a generally
accepted benchmark. We chose 5% which is consistent with
guantitative materiality thresholds used for profit-oriented entities
im this sector,

Rationale for the materiality
benchmark applicd

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion theregn, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matiers,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessmeni of expected credll los=es (ECL
provision for loans fo cusiomers in accardance
wilh [FRS 8 Financia! insirarmants

Measurement of ECL is a significant estimate We assessed the appropriateness of methodology
that involves determination of methodology, and models for calculating ECL  provisions
models and material data inputs. developed by the Group o evaluate their
: compliance with (e requiremanis of IFRS 8.
We considered impairment of loans 10 We obtained an understanding of the Group's
customers as a key audit matter due 1o the process for estimating ECL, judgments that are
significance of loans to customer balance and a  significant to the ECL estimate, the sufficiency of
complex financial reporting standard, which  the information to support those judgments and
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requires significant judgement 1o determing the
ECL pravision,

Key areas of judgement included:

Note

Classification of loans to customers inta
stages in accordance with IFRS 5;

Key estimates and madilling
assumptions used lo estimale key risk
parameaters — probability of default, loss
given default and exposure at defaull.

3 "Significant accounting policies”, Mobe

17 "Loans to Customers™ and Note 31 “Risk
Management Policies” fo the consclidated

financial

statements provide  detaibed

information en the credit loss allowance.

the degree of estimation uncertainty inherant in
those judgments,

With regard to the controls relating 1o the credit
loss allowance calculation process, we assessed
and lested on a sample basis the design and
operating effactivenass of the key controls over
credil loss data and calculations, These key
controls included those over loan autharization
and accuracy of input of customer data into loan
syslem, including authorization of loan standing
data amendmenis, allocation of cash recaived
from cusiomers to respective loans 1o customers'
accounts, overdue days couni on delinquent loans
and automated calculation of risk parameters and
ECL figures

We assessed and lested on a sample basis the
underlying data and systems, which are used by
the Group in determining the ECL estimate.

We evaluated and lested the reasonableness of
the ECL methodology developed and applied by
management such as:

» [lhe appropriateness of the Group's
approach 1o the segmentation of the loan
portialio,

+« the approprialeness of the siatistical
mathodalogy;

= tesied, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
allocation of loans to the different “stages”
and the compleleness of restructured
credii-impaired loans;

« validation of model risk parameters (PD,

LGD and EAD), forward-looking
information, associated weighting and the
ECL calculation;

=  back-testing of probabilities of default (PD)

and loss given default (LGD) risk
parameters;
In our work we were supported by the following
experts:

« credit risk experds in review of ECL
methodology of the Group;

+ risk assurance experts in validation of the
ECL sutputs from the calculation engine
implementad by the Group for expected
credil loss calculations.

We considered the sensitivity of the ECL provision
to variations in PD and LGD.
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We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of disclosures made in the consolidaled financial
statements regarding the credit loss allowance for
lzans o customers in accordance with IFRS.

How we tailored our Group audit scope

W tailored the scope of our audit in order 1o perform sufficient work fo enable s to provide an opimon
on the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, taking info account the struciure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Subsidiary of the Group is a non-significant component, therefore only material balances and
Iransactions of subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group were covered
through liméted audit procedures,

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial sialements

Managemenl is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
sialements in accordance with IFRS, and for such intemal control as management determines is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of consclidated financial statements that are free from material
missiaterment, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, discloging, as applicable. matlers related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends ta liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do o,

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Uur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducled in accordance with ISAs will always detect a malterial misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered malerial if individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of LSErS
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As parl of an auddl in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional sceplicism hroughout the audit, We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intarnal condral.

= Obiain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of axpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accouming
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as g going concarmn,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our guditar's

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in g manner that achieves fair presentation,

=  Obtain sufficient appropriale audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entiies or
business activities within the Group 10 express an opinion on the consolidated financial slatements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opirdon.

We communicale with those charged with gevernance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant awdit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our awdil.

We also provide those charged with governance with a Slatement that we have compiied with redevant
elhical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken (o eliminate threats ar safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the conselidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters, We deseribe these malters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse CONBBqUENCEE
of doing s0 would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Aigule Akhmetova,
o Il",:-'. | ol I 1

H. r_'.‘\_.__i__;..,t v FLA e L :-'-|.li- o i I iy L A . s

Baku, the Republic of Azerbaijan

14 June 2022



Bank Respublika OJSC
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaijani Manals, unless otherwise sfated)

Niea 2021 2020

Imerest imcome calculated uging the efective inbenst mathod 4 BB 423 74,340
Othar inlarest Income 4 . 45
IMerest expense 4 (27.281) [20,348)
Mot interest income before expected cradit losses on

interest bearing assets 61,142 54,038
Expected credit losses on interest bearing assels B 4601 {10,188)
Met interest incoma 65743 43,840
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 6 6,127 8,236
Losses less gaing Trom financial dervalives 19 [8.245) (3.978)
Fieg and commission income Fj 16,894 12,125
Fee and commission expense ] 12.273) {T.812)
Insurance resenes {1.831) (368)
Ciher income 8 B3a B17
MHet non-interest income B0 8,919
Operating income 66,581 52,755
Non-banking activities

Gross premiums writhen 10 45318 1,715
Premium ceded on reinsurance 10 {288) i215)
Claims paid, gross 11 {1.338) (308)
Claims caded on rensurance 11 B -
Tetal non-banking activities 2993 1,102
Operating expenses 12 (59.335) (46, Ba8)
Profit before income tax 10,211 7013
Income Ly expense i3 {1,153} {33}
Profit for the year 9,058 6,580
Other comprehonsive income, net of income tax & 5
Other eamprehansive income for the year, net of income

tax i =
Total comprehensive incoma for the year 9,058 B,980
Profit attributable to:

« Owniers of the Bank 9,528 5004
- Mon-conirolling Interests 34 {470 Té
Profit for the year 9,058 6,880
Total comprehengive income attributable ta:

= Drwners of the Bank 0,538 5,50
- Mon-contralling ineresis 34 (470 6
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,058 B,980
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AZN) 14 0.318 0,230

The consolidated financial stale
an 14 June 2022 and were si

15 as sel out on pages 5 1o 104 were approved by management
n its behalf by:

k. _\f---__ — }:;__.'.e___

. Mr. Tariyel [am Mr. Jawd Rzayev
, Ehairman of the Maniagément Board Head of Finance Department
.M- H"'\:_H___ _-_-.. #y
b WL (TS

S

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 104 are an integral par of these consolidated financial statements 1



Bank Respublika OJSC

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbafjani Manats, unless otherwise siated)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis
Loans b banks

Loans ta custormars

Investment securities

Darivative financial assets
Property and equipmant
Intangitie assels

Agsats heid for sale
Repossesged collmaral

Dederred tax assets

Diher assets

Gipodwill

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Armoants due 1o credd instiutions
Current accounts and deposits from cusiomers
Ciher borrowed funds

Lease liabililies

Derivative financial Eabilites
Other Rabilities

Current income tax Hability
Bonds issued

Subordinated borrowings

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Revalualion resene for bulldings
Retained earnings/fccumulated deficit
Total equity attributable to owners of the Bank
Mon-controling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Bank Respublil /

L/
Mr. Tariyel lsmayilov —
Chairman of the'Managerient Board

Notes

15
16
17
18
19
20

23
13
21

s EeBER

24
13
av
25

4 December 2021 31 Decembagr 2020
287 502 B3z
a2.480 28,02
715,180 442 B4
ar.ao2 36,241
1,961 2377
43,153 38,841
1857 1,657
20 B8
4 TE3 4 800
2,052 2220
13,592 12,307
467 457
1,141,029 854 467
1. 180 1.018
B22 450 TO6 515
174 524 135,703
3,295 2,60
1,157 313
18,189 4,798
GBS -
10,038 -
20,848 19,508
1,052, 864 BY5.360
T3481 73,481
7633 T.633
2687 (8,631)
83,95 T4 483
4174 4 B4

88,165 79,107
1,141,029 854 467

g

Mr. Javid Rzayev
Head of Finance Department

The accompanying notes on pages 5 1o 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalemants 2



Bank Respublika OJSC
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaifani Manats, uniess otherwise slated)

Wotes 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activitles
Inferasd recevd 84,212 68,544
Interest paid {16,661) {12,987)
Feas and commissions recened 16,804 12,125
Foas and commissions paid (12.273) (7.812)
Realized gains less losses from exchange transaclions in
forelgn currencies g.127 8,236
Personngl expanses paid {38,321) (30,742)
Administrative expeanses paid {14,128) (12,273)
Met losses on operations with forelgn currency derivatives (7.585) (7.352)
Gross pramiums writhin 4,530 1.715
Premium ceded on reinsurance {2EE) {215)
Claims paid, gross i 1,338) {358]
Dither operating incorme recied e v
Claims caded on reinsurance G0 -
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating assels and Habllitles 21,786 19,563
Nl (increaselidecraase i operaling Geseis
Loans bo banks (4,374) 15,647
Loans to customers (265,606) 30,685
Diher assels {877 2,783
Med increasafdecreasa) i operading Nabdities
Amounts due o credil instilulions 154 [2.200)
Currani accounts and deposils from custemars 116,331 (399867
Cither liabilitias 4923 1457
Met cash flows used In operating activities (127,753} (331.681)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipmant {7.511) (1.821)
Acquisiton of intangible assels [323) [1.2T9)
Proceeds from salé of propery and aquipiment ¥ it R
Procesds from sale of assel hild for sala rob -
Purchase of Investiment securitles {2.408) (35.013)
Proceseds from sale and redemption of Invesiment securities - 16,373
Ineresl incoma mcdived on inestments in debl securilies 1,606 1.424
Met cash used in investing activities {7.54T) (19,623)
Cash flows from financing activities
Procids from ather borrownad funds 26 88,091 39,447
Repayment of other bomowed funds 26 {47 BEE) [23.645)
Interest expanse pald on other bomowed funds 28 (6,847} 15.426)
Proceeds from subordinaled borrowings 25 7,008 a
Repaymant of subordinated boermowings 25 {5,770} -
interest expense paid on subordinated bormewings 25 {1.592) (1,.706)
Fepayment of principal lsase labllites {2,020) {853
Procisds from bonds issue 10,000 -
Met cash from financing activities 40,904 7717
Het decrease in cash and cash eguivalents (54, 396) (323, TET)
Effect of changes in exchange rales on cash and cash equivalents {1,734) 850
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 383,632 T26,569
Cash and cash equivalents, anding 15 287,502 383,632

The acoompanying notes on pages 5 1o 104 are an intagral par of these consolidated financial statements
3
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Bank Respublika OJ5C
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 20217
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaifani Manals, unless othenwise staled)

1 Background
Organisation and operations

These consolidated financial siatements comprise the finencial statements of Bank Respublika
OJSC (the Bank) and its subsidiary (togather, the Group).

The Bank was incorporated in the Republic of Azerbaijan in 1992, The Bank is regulated by the
Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan (the *CBAR") and conducts its business under general
license number &3, The Bank's primary business consists of commercial activities, origination loans
and guaraniess, and Irading with foreign currencies. The Bank had 25 branches and three service
points in Azerbaijan as af 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020; 24 branches and two service
points).

The Bank's registered office is 21, Khagani Sireel, Baku AZ 1000, Azerbaijan,

The only subsidiary of the Bank is as follows:

Ownership %
Hame Country of incorporation Principal activities 2021 2020
Bakl Sigora OJSC The Repubdc of Azerbaijan Insurance 51 51

Twral Insurance Open Joinl Stock Company was registered on & February 1994, subsequenily it
was renamed o Baki Sigoria Open Joinl Stock Company (the Company) which was registered in
the Republic of Azerbaijan on 28 August 2007, The principal activity of the Company is insurance
services, The Company operates under insurance licenses issued by the Minisiry of Finance of the
Republic of Azerbaijan dated 12 February 2004, Insurance policies writtan by the Company include,
but are nod limited to, cargo, property, casually, third party liability, automobile and reinsurance,

The Comipany's registered office is 315C, Abbas Mirza Sharifzada Streel, Baku, Azerbaijan.

The table below shows details of the only subsidiary of the Group that has material non-coniralling
interasl:

Crernership {Loss)profit Accumulated
interasts and allocated fonen-  nen-controlling
volting rights held controlling interests
by non-contralling interasts
interesis

Wame of subsidiary 2021, % 2020, % 2021 i Fi 20 2020
Baki Sigorta OJSC 49 49  (470) T6 4174 4844
Taotal 4174 4,644

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interesis is presented below with further details in Mote 34,

Mon-controlling interests comprise:

) 2021 2020
As at 1 January 4,644 4,568
Sharge of (lossypaofil for the year (470} T8

Az at 31 December 4,174 4,644




Bank Respublika OJ5C
MNotes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -37 December 2021

{Amounts are presenfed in thousands of Azerbaiani Manats, unless otherwise slated)

1 Background {Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the following shareholders owned issued shares of the
Group:

2021, % 2020, %
Guliyev Natig Saday oglu 67.75 51.15
DEG - Deulsche Investitions - und Entwicklungsgeselischaft mbH - 16.60
Guliyev Elchin Saday oglu 15.06 15.06
Guliyev Mamig Saday oghu 7.41 7.41
Rahirnoy Shakir Kivayyam ogiu 545 545
SIDT {Sparkassen Intemational Development Trust GmbH) 4.25 425
Othars 008 0.08
Taotal 100 100

The Group is ultimately controlled by a single individual, Gulivey Natlg Saday oglu.
Business environment

The Republic of Azerbaijan displays certain characteristics of an emerging market, Currend and
Tuture growth and stability of the economy is largely dependent upon the effective implementation
of economic, fiscal and monetary measures undertaken by government as well as crude oll prices
and stability of Azerbaijani manals.

Based on the economic reforms initiated after the devaluation of 2016 Involving institutional
changes, between 2017-2019 period economic growlh remained positive, inflation was siable at a
low single-digit rate and the exchange rate of the national currency was sustainable. Azerbaijani
economy rebounded strongly in 2021 from recession in 2020 and grew by 5.6 percent, reaching
pre-pandemic level. The international rating agencies have maintained credit ratings of Azerbaljan
during 2020 with stable outiook, In April 2021, Moody's affirmed Azerbaian's economy as "Ba2”
rating and changed outlook from stable o positive. In April 2022, Mocdy's issued a Credit Qpinion
of "Ba2” positive for Azerbaijan,

The recovery in oil prices in 2021 and gradual lifling of pandemic resirictions built confidence and
economic growth was led by robust performance in non-oil sectors, despite challenges from the
orgoing pandemic. The Manal remained stable throughout 2021 as pressure on manat decreased
substantially, thanks to more than 60% annual rige In expors.

After the liberation of occupsed leriories in Karabakh region, restoration and reconsinuction of the
liberated ferrifory have started swifily, with the focus of reintegrating these terribories to Azerbaijani
economy. These activities are expected 1o provide a further boost to Azerbaijani economy in near
future and long-term.

The lending activity of the banking secior has risen by 18% in 2021, providing support to the
economic growth. Consumer and morigage loans to individuals rose 22% and deposits portfolio of
the banking sector recorded 30% growth. Management is taking necessary measures o ensure
sustainability of the Group's operations and support its customers and employees,

Dwring pandemic period in 2020 due (o strict quaranting regime the Group ensured sustainability of
operations wilh about T0% of employvees working remately. Programs were implemanied for online
meetings and internal communication, Further 1o the observations and revision, the Group provided
opportunity for the loans restruciuring to Azerbaijani small and micro businesses, impacied by the

pandemic.




Bank Respublika OJ5C
MNetes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021

ey

2 Basis of Preparation

{a) Statement of compliance

The accompanying consalidated financial stalements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

{b) Basis of measuremeant

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments a1 fair value through profit or loss and financial instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are staled at fair value, assets held for sale are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and buildings are stated at revalued amounts.

ic) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group and its only subsidiary is the Azerbaijani Manat (AZMN) as,
baing the national currency of the Republic of Azerbaijan, it reflecis the economic substance of the
majority of underlying events and circumstances relevant o them.

At 31 December 2021, the principal rate of exchange used for ranslating foreign currency balances
was USD 1= AZN 1.7000 and EUR 1 = AZN 1.9265 {31 December 2020: USD 1 = AZN 1.7000
and EUR 1 = AZN 2.0890). The AZN is also the presentation currency for the purposes of thase
consolidated financial statements.

Financial information presented in AZN is rounded to the neares! thousand, unless otherwise
stated.

(d} Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumplions thal affect the amounis recognised in the
consolidated financial statements, and the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next
financial year. Estimales and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed io be reasonable under the circumsiances. Managemeni also makes certain judgemants,
apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies,
Judgements that have the mosi significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assels
and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Golng concern. Management prepared these consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. In making this judgement management considered the Group's financial position,
currend intentions, profitability of operations and access to financial resources, and analysed the
impact of recant macro-economic developments on future operations of the Group. The Group was
in compliance with covenanis at 31 December 2021 and 31 Decamber 2020. For further information
on compliance with regulatory ratios refer to Note 33,

Business model assessment. The business model drives classification of financial assels.
Management applied judgement in determining the level of aggregation and portfolios of financial
instruments when performing the business model assessment. When assessing sales transactions,
the Group considers their hislorical frequency, fiming and valwe, reasons for the sales and
expeciations about fulure sales aclivity, Sales fransaciions aimed al minimising polential losses
due to credit deterioration are considered consistent with the “hold 1o collect” business model, Other
sales before maturity, not related to credit risk management activities, are also consistent with the
“hold to collect” business model, provided that they are infrequent or insignificant in value, both
individually and in aggregate. The Group assesses significance of sales transactions by comparing
the value of the sales to the value of the portfolio subject to the business model assessment over
the average life of the portfolio. In addition, sales of financial assel expected only in siress case
scenario, or in response o an isalated event that is beyvond the Group’s controd, is not recurring and
could not have been anticipated by the Group, are regarded as incidental to the business model
objective and do not impact the classificalion of the respective financial assels,
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2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

The “hold to collect and sell” business model means that assets are held to collect the cash flows,
but selling is also integral o achieving the business model's objective, such as, managing liquidity
neads, achieving a particular yield, or matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration
of the ligbilities that fund those assels.

The residual category includes those portfolios of financial assets, which are managed with the
objective of realising cash flows primarily through sale, such as where a pattern of trading exists.
Collecting contraciual cash flow is often incidental for this business model.

The Group classifies its debl securities as held to collect based on the assumption that these
securiies would only be sold in a siress case scenario.

Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI").
Determining whether a financial asset’'s cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group considers:

. Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows:
. Leverage features;
D Prapayment and extension terms;

. Terms that limit the Group’s claim to the cash flows from specified assets (e 4. NON-recurse
financing);

. Features that modify consideration of the time value of money element (e.g. periodical reset
of interest rates);

The Group continuously analyzes contractual terms that change the liming or amount of contractual
cash flows. The SPPI criterion is met If a loan allows early selilement and the prepayment amount
substantially represents principal and accrued interest, plus a reasonable addiional compensation
for the early termination of the contract. The asset's principal is the fair value at initial recognition
less subsequent principal repayments, ie instalments net of inlerest determinad using the effective
interesl method. As an exception to this principle, the standard also aliows instruments with
prepayment features that meat the following condition 1o meet SPPI: (i) the asset is originated at a
premium or discount, (i) the prepayment amount represents contractual par amount and accrued
interest and a reasonable additional compensation for the early termination of the contract, and (ii)
the fair value of the prepayment feature is immaterial at initial recognition.

The Groups® lcan arrangements sometimes may include cross-seling clauses that represent a
reduction in the interest rate upon the customer entering into olher confracts with the Group or
achieving certain criteria, such as maintaining a minimwm turnover on current Group accounts held
wilh the Group. The cash flows are SPPI if such clauses merely reduce the Group's overall profit
margin on the instrument and there are no other features inconsisterd with a basic lending
arrangement,

The Group's loan agreaments allow adjusting interest rates in response 1o certain Macro-economic
or regulatory changes. Managemant applied judgement and assessed that competition in the
banking sector and the practical ability of the borrowers to refinance the loans would prevent it from
resetting the interest rates at an above-market level and hence cash flows were assessed as baing
EFF.
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2 Basis of Preparation {Continued)

ECL measurement. Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of
methodology, models and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodolegy are disclosed in
Mole 31 "Risk Management Policies™ {a). The following components have a major impact on credit
less allowance:; definition of default, SICR and its assessment criteria, probability of default *PD"),
exposure at default "EAD"), and loss given default ("LGD"), as well as models of macro-economic
scanarios, segmentation of financial assets for the ECL assessment purposes, determination of a
level of ECL assessment on a colleclive basis. The Group regulary reviews and validates the
models and inpuls 1o the models o reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates
and aciual credit loss experience. Impact of forward-looking assumptions correlated with ECL level
and thiir assigned waight is not significant.

The Group used supporiable forward-looking information for measurement of ECL, primarily an
oulcome of its own macro-economic forecasting model, Detads about the most significant forward-
logking assumplions that correlate with ECL level and further informalion is disclosed in Mole 31
"Risk Management Policies”

ECL related sensitivity results are disclosed in Note 17 "Loans to Cusiomers”,

Credit exposure on revolving credit facilities (e.g. credit cards, overdrafts), For cerain loan
facilities, tha Group's exposure to credit losses may extend beyond the maximum confractual period
of the facility. This exceplion apphes o certain revolving credit facilities, which inciude both a loan
and an undrawn commitment component and where the Group's contractual ability to demand
repayment and cancel the undrawn component in practice does not imit its exposure to credit
losses.

For such facilities, the Group measures ECLs over the period that the Group is exposed to credit
risk and ECLs are nol mitigated by credil risk management aclions. Application of this exception
requires judgement. Managemen! applied its judgement in ientifying the faciliies, both retail and
commercial, to which this exception applies. The Group applied this exceplion to faciliies with the
Tollewing characteristics: (a) there iz no fixed term or repayment structure, (b) the coniractual ability
o cancel the contract is nol in practice enforced as a result of day-to-day management of the credit
exposure and the confract may only be cancelled when the Group becomes aware of an increase
in crisdit risk at the kevel of an individual faciity, and (c) the expasures are managed on a collective
basis. Further, the Group applied judgement in determining & period for measuring the ECL,
including the starting point and the expected end paint of the exposures.

The Group considered historical information and experience about. (a) the period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk on similar faciliies, including when the last significant modification
of the facility occurred and that therefore determines the starting point for assessing SICR, (b) the
length of time for related defaulls to occur on similar financial instruments following a SICR and (c)
the credit risk management actions (eg the reduction or removal of undrawn limits), prepayment
rates and other factors that drive expected malurily. In applying these factors, the Group segments
the portfalios of revolving facilities info sub-groups and applies the faciors that are most relevant
based on historical data and experience as well as forward-looking information

Significant increase in credit sk (“SICR"). In order to delermine whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group uses the following criteria:
« compares the risk of a defaull cocurring over the |ife of a financial instrument at the end of
the reporting date with the risk of defaull at the dale of initial recognition
» backstop of 30 days past due (DPD). DPD value is the maximum of DPD interest and DPD
principal of the loan taking inlo account any delay in repayment.
« tolal probability of default in the next vear exceeds certain threshold dependent on the loan
segment

The assessment considers relative increase in credil risk rather than achieving a specific level of
credit risk at the end of the reporting period, The Group considers all reasonable and supportable
forward looking Information available withoul undue cost and effort, which includes a range of
factors, including behaviowral aspects of particular customer portfolios. The Group identifies
behavioural indicators of increases in credit risk prior to delinquency and incorporated appropriate
forward looking information into the credit risk assessment, either at an indvidual instrument, or on
a portfolio level. Refer io Mote 31 {a).

9
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2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Modification of financial assefs. When financial assets are confractually modified (e.g.
renegotiated), the Group assesses whether the modification is substantial and should result in de-
recognition of the original asset and recognition of a new asset at fair value, This assessment is
based primarily on qualitative factors, described in the relevant accounting policy and it requires
significant judgment. In particular, the Group applhes judgment in deciding whether credit impaired
renegotiated loans should be derecognised and whether the new recognised loans should be
considered as credit impaired on initial recognition. The de-recognition assessment depends on
whaether the risks and rewards, that is, the variability of expected (rather than contractual) cash
fiows, change as a result of such medifications. Management determined that risks and rewards
did not change as a resull of modifying such loans and therefore in substantially all such
modifications, the loans were neither derecognised nor reclassified out of the credit-impaired stage.

Taxation. Tax lagislation in Azerbaijan is subject o varying interpretations, and changes can occur
frequently,. Management interpretation of such legislation and changes, as applied lo the
transactions and activity of the Group may be challenged by the relevant authorities. As such,
additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open (o raview by
the authorities in respect of taxes for three years including the year of review. Management believes
that as of 31 December 2021 its interpretation of the relevant legisiation is appropriate and that the
Group's tax position will be sustained,

The recognised deferred tax assel represants income taxes recoverable through future deductions
from taxable profits, and is recorded in the statement of financial position. Deferred income tax
assels are recorded o the exfent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The future
taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on a medium
term business plan prepared by managemaent and extrapolated results thereafter. Refer to Note 13.

Determination of collateral value. Management monitors market value of collateral on a regular
basis. Managemen! uses is experienced judgement or independent opinion to adjust the fair value
to reflect the current circumsiances, The amount and collateral required depend on the assessment
of credit risk of the counterparty.

(&) Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

The following amended standards became effective from 1 January 2021, but did nof have any
material impact on the Group:

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment to IFRS 16 (issued on 28 May 2020 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020). The amendment provides
lessees with relief in the form of an optional exemption from assessing whether a renl concession
related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect o account for renl concessions in
the same way as if they were not lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-18 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met: the change in lease payments resulls in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30
June 2021; and there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. On 31
March 2021, in light of the on-going pandemic, the IASB published additional amendment lo extend
the date for the concessions from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021). Effect of the amendment did not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Grouwp.

Interest rate benchmark (IBOR) reform - phase 2 amendments to IFRS 8, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 (Issued on 27 August 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021). The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the
implementation of the reforms, including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one.
The amendments cover he following areas:
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F Basis of Preparation [Continued)

¥ Accounting for changes in the basis for determining confractual cash flows as a result of
IBOR reform: For instruments to which the amontised cost measurement applies, the amendments
require entities, as a practical expedient, to account for a change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a resull of IBOR reform by updating the effective interest rale using the
guidance in paragraph B5.4.5 of IFR3 8, As a result, no immediate gain or 1655 is recagnised. This
praclical expediant applies only to such a change and only to the extent it is necessary as a direct
consequence of IBOR reform, and the new basis is economically equivalent 1o the previous basis.
Insurers applving the lemporary exemplion from IFRS 9 are also required 1o apply the same
practical expedient. IFRS 168 was also amended to require lessees {o usa a similar practical
expedient when accounting for lease modifications that change the basis for determining fulure
lease payments as @ result of IBOR reform.

. End date for Phase 1 relief for non-contraciually specified risk components in hedging
relationships: The Phase 2 amendments require an entity o prospectively cease to apply the Phase
1 reliefs 1o a non-confractually specified risk component at the eadier of when changes are made
tor the non-contractually specified risk component, or when the hedging relationship is discontinued.
Mo end date was provided in the Phase 1 amendments for risk componenis.

. Additional temporary exceptions from applying specific hedge accounting reguirements:
The Phase 2 amendments provide some additional temporary reliefs from applying specific 1AS 39
and IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements to hadging relationships directly affected by IBOR
reform.

. Additional IFRS 7 disclosures relaled to IBOR reform: The amandments require disclosure
of: {1} how the entity is managing the transition o alternative benchmark rates, ils progress and the
risks arising from the transition; (i} quantitative nformation aboul derivatives and non-dervalives
that have yet 1o fransition, disaggregaled by significant interest rate benchmark; and (i) a
description of any changes to the risk management strategy as a result of IBOR reform.

The application of the amendments did not have any material impact on financial sialements.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements.

(a) Basis of consolidation
fi) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvament with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the enlity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consclidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align
them with the policies adopted by the Group. Losses applicable to the non-contralling inferests in a
subsidiary are allocated 1o the non-controlling interesis even if doing so causes the non-controlling
interests o have a deficit balance,

ti) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group  balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
Iransactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial stalements. Unrealised losses
are eliminated In the same way as unrealised gains except that they are only eliminated to the
extent that thera is no evidence of impairment.

fiii)  Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated financial
stalemenis.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units for impairment testing purposes and is stated al cost
less impairment losses.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related 1o the
entity sold,

{b) Non-controlling interests

Non-controfling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a less of control are accounted
for as equily transactions.

ic) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency of the Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the fransactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies al the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rale at that date. The foreign currency gain
or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency at the
beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reperting pericd.

Mon-monelary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies thal are measured at fair
value are refransiated 1o the functional currency at the exchange rate al the date thal the fair value
iz determined. Non-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rate at ihe date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for the
differances on aguity investments in respact of which an election has been made (o present
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income, which are recognized in other
comprehensive iNcome,
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)
(d) Interest
Effective interest rafe

Inberest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The 'effective interest rate’ = the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash paymenis or
receipls through the expected Iife of the financial instrument to:

® i gross carrying amount of the financial assel; or
® e amortised cost of the financial Rability

When calculating the effective inferest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, but nod expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credil-

impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusied effective interest rate is calculated using estimated
future cash flows including expecied credil lessas.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction cosis and fees and painis paid or
recaived that are an integral part of the effective interest rale. Transaction cosis include incremental
costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liabdity.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
assel or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected
credit loss allowance.

The "gross carrying amount of a financial assel’ measured at amortised cost is the amorlised cost
of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Calewlation of interest income and expense

The effectve interast rate of a financial asset or financial labifity is calculated on initiad recognition
of a financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective
inberest rale is applied ko thie gross carrying amount of the assel (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amorised cost of the liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of
periodic re-astimation of cash flows of floating rate insfruments 1o reflect movements in market rates
of interest,

However, for financial assets that have become credil-impaired subsegueni fo initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial assel. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of inferest income
reveris io the gross basis.

For financial assets thal were credil-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the assat. The calculation
of interest income does not revert 10 a gross basis, even if the credi risk of (he assel improves.

For information on when financial assels are credit-impaired, see Note 3(({iv).
Presentation

Interest income cakoulated using the effective interest methed presented in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets
measured at amortised cost,

Oiher interest income presenied in the consolidaled statement of profit or loss and oiher
comprehensive income includes inferest income on non-dervative debl financial instruments

measured 81 FVTPL

Interest expense presented in the consolidated statermenis of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes financial labilifies measured al amorlised cost

The Group présents nel interest payments on cross currency mbterest rate swaps within the ‘interest
expense’ line item on a net basis, while the ofher changes in fair value of these derivative
instruments are presented as ‘net gain (loss) on derivative financial instruments’ on the basis that
it reflects the economic hedge.

(&) Fees and commissions

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rale on a financial
assel or financial Hability are included in the effeclive interest rate [see Note 3id)).

Loan grigination fees, loan servicing fees and other fees thal are considered 1o be integral to the
overall profitability of a loan, logether with the relaled fransaction costs, are deferred and amortised
to interest income over the estimated life of the financial instrument using the effective interest
miedihod.

Other fee and commission income = including fee and commission income on plasiic cards
services, seiflament fees, and cash operations - i5 recognised as the related services ang
performed. f a loan commitment is not expected 1o resull in the draw-down of a loan, then the
relaled loan commitment fee is recognised on a straighl-ling basis over [he commiment peciod.

Cimer fee and commission expenses retale mainly to transaction and service fees, which are
expensed as the services are recaived,
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Performance obligations and revenue recognilion policies

Fee amd commission income from confracts with customers i measered based on the
consideration specified in a confract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue when it
tranafers control over a service to a customear.

The following table provides information aboutl the nature and timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the
retated revanue recogniticn policies,

Hature and timing of satisfaction of parformance Revenua recognition
_Type of service  obligations, including significant payment terms _ policies

The Group provides banking serdces o retail and | Revenue redated to
comporate customars, provision of overdraft Bcilibes, | ransecions 1S recognised
foredgn  currency transaclions, creddl cards and | at the point in time whien he
servicing fees, tranzaction takas placa.

Transaction-basad feas for interchange., fonsign
cumency transactions and overdrafts are charged to
Retall and corporate the customers accounl when the transaction takes

banking sendce | Piace.

Thie Group charges commission foee 1o the customers | Revenue from feas on

for the guarantees letters mewad. issuancn of guarantess and
latiers of cradit is
recagnized ower the pariod
unlil matusrity date of such
confracts.

{f Financial assets and financial liabilities

{i Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or
FWTPL.

A financial asset is measured al amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not deskignated as at FVTPL:

» fhe assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels to collect
contraciual cash fiows; and

= tfhe contraciual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amaount outstanding.

s A debt instrument is measured al FVOCH ondy if it meets both of the following conditions
and is nol designaled as al FWTPL:

= the assel is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and inlerest on e principal amount outstanding,

+ For debl financial assels measured al FVOCI, gaing and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the following, which are recognised in profit or loss in
the same manner as for financial assels measured at amortised cost:

» Interest income using the effective interest mathod;
» ECL and reversals; and
» foreign exchange gains and losses.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

When a debt financial asset measured at FVOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity 1o profit or loss.

On initial recognition of an equily investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irmevocably
alect to presant subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an invesiment-by-investiment basis,

Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profil or loss and no
impairmant is recognised in profit or logs. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss (see MNote
3(s){(i}) unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income. Cumulative gains and losses recognised in
other comprehensive income are transferred to retained earnings on disposal of an invesiment.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Group may imevocably designate a financial assel that
otherwise meels the requirements o be measured al amortised cost or at FVOC! as at FYTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an assel is held al
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the busziness is managed and information is
provided to managemenl. The information considered includes;

s the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the aperalion of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether managemant's strategy focuses on eaming contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular inferest rate profile, malching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of the liabidities that are funding those assets or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assels;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's managemant;
ihe risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

» how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contraciual cash flows collected; and

+ the frequency, velume and timing of sales in prior pericds, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity, However, information about sales activity is not
considerad in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group's stated
ohjective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised,

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured al FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows
nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assels.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associaled with the principal amount cutstanding during a particular period of time and for olher
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asse! containg a contraciual lerm that could change the timing or amount of contraciual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Group
considers:

conlingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension tarms;

terms that lims the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
asset arangements); and
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

® features that modify consideration of the time value of money = &.g. periodical resel of
interest rates.

Raclassification

Financial assets are nol reciassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assefs.

ffi)  Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transachon
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are iransferred
or In which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assel,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference betwaen the carrying amount of the assel {or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset oblained less any new liability assumed) and (i)
any curmulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group conlinues
1o recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which
it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liablity when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire,

fiii)  Modification of financial assets and financial labilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified assel are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different (referred to as “substantial modification’), then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial assel are deemed 1o have expired. In this
case, the original financial assel is derecognised (see MNote 3(f)ii)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction cosis. Any fees received as part of the
modification are accounted for as follows:

* fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that
represent reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the
assel: and

N other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

Changes in cash flows on existing financial assets or financial liabiliies are nol considered as
modification, if they result from existing confractual terms, e.g. changes in interest rates initialed by
the Group due to changes in the CBAR key rate, if the loan agreement entities the Group o do so.

The Group performs a quaniitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is
substantial, i.e, whether the cash flows of the orginal financial asset and the modified or replaced
financial asset are substantially different. The Group assesses whether the modification is
substantial based on quantitative and qualitative factors in the following order: qualitative factors,
quantitative factors, combined effect of qualitative and guantitative factors. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights 1o cash flows from the original financial asset
deerned 1o have expired. In making this evaluation the Group analogizes 1o the guidance on the
derecognition of financial liabilities

7
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Group concludes that the modification is substantial as a resull of the following gqualitative
factors:

" change the currency of the financial asset;
L change in collateral or other credit enhancament;
L change of terms of financial asset that lead to non-compliance with the SPPI criterion

{e.0. inclusion of conversion featura).

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually o maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than io originate
a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Group plans fo modify a financial asset in a way
that would result in forgivenass of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset
should be writlen off before the modification takes place (see below for wrile-off policy). This
approach impacts the resull of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria
are nol usually met in such cases, The Group further performs qualitative evaluation of whather the
modification is substantial.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOC| does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the Group first recalculates the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the assat and recognises the resulting
adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the
original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or 058 is adjusted to reflect
current market lerms at the time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received
as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaining lerm of the modified financial asset.

If such a modification is carmed out because of financial difficulties of the borrower (see Nobe 3(THiv),
then the gain or loss is presented togeiher with impairment losses. In other cases, il i presentad
a5 interest income calculated using the effective interest method (see Note 3(d)).

For fixed-rate loans, where the borrower has an oplion to prepay the loan at par without significant
panalty, the Group treats the modification of an inlerest rate 1o @ current market rale using the
guidance on floating-rate financial instruments. This means that the effective inlerest rate is

adjusted prospectively.
Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial lability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial [ability based on the
modified terms is recognised al fair value, The difference between the carmying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in
profit or loss. Consideration pald includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the
assumption of liabilities, including the new modified financial |iability.

Group performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial
considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and
quantitative factors. The Group concludes that the modification is substantial as a resull of the
following qualitative factors:

change the currency of the financial liability;
change in collaleral or other credit enhancemant,
inclusion of conversion option;

change in the subordination of the financial liability.

Faor the guantitative assessment the lerms are substantially different if the discounted present valuwe
of the cash flows under the mew terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective inlerest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial Nability.
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3 Slgnificant Accounting Pelicles {Continued)

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amoriised
cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows al the griginal effective
interes! rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profil or loss. For floating-rate financial
ligbilities, the original effective interest rate used Io calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted
1o reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are
recognised as an adjusiment o the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining
ferm of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rale on the instrument.

fiv)  Impairment
See alzo Note 31(a).

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are nol measured at FVTPL:

* financial assets that are debt instruments;
" financial guarantee contracts issued; and
. loan commitmants ssued.

Mo imparment loss s recognized on equity investments,

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, excep! for the following,
for which they are measured as 12-maonth ECL:

. debl investment securities that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the
reporting date; and
" ofher financial insfruments an which credit risk has not increased significanily since

their initial recognition (ses Note 31{a)).

The Group considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when ils credit risk rating is
equivalent o the globally understood definition of investment grade’.

12-month ECL are the partion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-
maonth ECL is recognised are referred to as "Stage 1’ financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default evenis over the expecied life of the
financial mstrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised ane refermed o as
‘Stage 2’ financial instruments {if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
but the financial instruments are nol credil-impaired) and "Stage 3 financial instruments (if the
financial instruments are credit-impaired).

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighled estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows;

. financlal assets that are not credit-impaked af the reporiing dale: as the present
value of all cash shorifalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due o the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receivel;

. financig! assels thal are credi-impaied al he reporting dale; as the difference
between the gross carrying amount and he present value of estimated future cash flows;
. undrawn loan commilments: as the presant value of tha difference between the
contraciual cash flows that are due Io the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the
cash flows that the Group expects o receive; and

] financial guarantes confracts: the present value of expecied payments fo reimburse
the holder less any amounis that the Group expecis to recover, [See also Mote 28(a)).
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3 Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial assel are renegotiated or modified or an exisling financial asset is replaced
with & new one due o financial difficullies of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognised [see Mote 3(f)(i)} and ECL are measured as follows.

* if the expecied restructuring will mot result in derecognition of the existing assel,
then the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in
calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset (see Note 31(a))

# if the expecied restructusing will resull in derecognition of the existing asset, then
the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing
financial assat at the ime of ils derecognition, This amount is included in calculating the
cash shortfalts from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date
of derecognition to the reporting date using the onginal effective interest rate of the existing
financial assel.

Gredit-impaired financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assels carried al amorlised cosl are
cradit-impaired. & financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events thal have a
defrimental impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial assel have occurned.

Evidence thal a financial assel i credi-impalred incdudes the following observable dala:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower OF ISSUer;
a breach of confract such as a default or past due event;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider othefsisa:

« it i& becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; ar

« the disappearance of an actvve market for 2 securily because of financial difficullies.

& loan that has been renegoliated due to a deteroration in the borrowers condition is usually
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contraciual
cash fiows has reduced significantly and there are no other Indicators of impairment. In addition, all
lpans that are overdue for 90 days or more are considered credit-impaired.

in making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, the Group
considers the following factors.

The market's assessment of credibworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworihiness,

The country’s ability 1o access the capital markets for new debt issuance,

The probabiity of debt being restructured, resulling in holders suffering losses through
voluntary or mandatory dabt forgivenass.

= The international support mechanisms in place bo provide the necessary support as lender
of last resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflecied in public statemenis, of
governmenis and agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the
depih of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the pelitical infent, whether there is the
capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the consolidated slatement of financial position as
follows:;

» financial assels measured af emorfised cosl as a deduction from the gross carmying amount
of the assets;

* loan commifments and financial guaranfes contracts: as a provision within “Other liabilities”
lime;

My
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

" where & financial insirument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commilment component separalely from those on the
drawn component the Group presenis 8 combined loss allowance for both components. The
combined amount s presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is
prasented as a provision; and

. debt instruments measured al FVOCH no loss allowance is recognised in the consolidated
stalement of financial position because the camying amount of these assets is their fair value,
However, the lozs allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve,

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows 1o repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment
is carried out 8l the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘expected credil losses on interest
bearing assels’ in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assels that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

vl Fair value measurement principles

Fair value s the price that would be recelved 1o sell an assel or paid to transfer a liabiity in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or In its
absence, the most advantageous markel to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value
of a kability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing informalion on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an aclive market, the Group uses valuation techniques thal
maximisa the use of relevant observable inputs and minirmise the use of unobservable inputs. The
ehosen valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into
account in thesa cifcumslances.,

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price, i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value s
avidanced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based
on a valuation technigue that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is
initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference IS recognised in profit or loss
on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrumend, but no later than when the valuation is
supported wholly by observable market data or the fransaction is closed oul.

fvi)  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the nel amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial posilion when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right 1o st off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or o realize the
assal and settle the lability simultaneously. The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off if that right is not contingent on a future event and enforceable both in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, inschlvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all counlerparties.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

)] Loans to customears
‘Loans to customers’ caption in the consclidated statement of financial position include:

" lpans to cusiomers measured al amorlised cost (see Note 3y they are initially
measured al fair value plus incremental direct fransaction cosis, and subsequently at their
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(h}) Investment securities
The 'investment securities’ caplion in the consoldated statement of financial position includes:

. debt investment securities measured at amorlised cost (see Note 3{T){i)); these are initially
measured at fair value plus incremental direct fransaction costs, and subsegqueantly at thedr
amoriised cost using the effective intérest method;

. debt invesiment securities mandatorily measured at FVTPL (see Mote 2()i)); these are
measured al fair value with changes recognised immedialely in profil or loss;
. equily investment secunbies designated as at FVOC! [see Mole 30K,

() Deposits, subordinated borrowings and other borrowed funds

Amounts due 1o credit instibubions, current accounts and deposits from customers, subordinated
bomowings and other borrowed funds are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct
fransacton cosls, and subseguently measwred at their amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

1] Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts that reguire the Group to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrumenl. Loan commiiments are firm commitments o
provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Financial guarantees issued or commitments to provide a loan at a below-markel interest rate are
initially measured at fair value, Subsequently, they are measurad at the higher of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 (see Mote 3(M){iv]) and the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with he principles
of IFRS 15.

The Group has ssued no loan commitments thal are measured at FVTPL.
For other loan commitments the Group recognises a loss allowance (see Mote 3(f{iv)).

ECL for loan commitments, financial guarantees and undrawn portion of credit line is presented in
the separate ling consclidated statement of profit or loss "Provision for credit

related commilments” in the consolidated statement of profit or less and other comprehensive
income and other labilites (see Mole 27)

ik) Reposessed Collateral

In certain circumstances, collateral s repossessad following the foreclosure on loans (hal are in
default. Repossessed collateral is initially recognized ai fair value when acquired and subsequently
measured at the lower of carrying amouwnt and nat realisabla value.

[} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis include noles and coing on hand, unrestricied batamces (nostro
accounts) held with the CBAR and other banks, and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturities of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair
value, and are used by the Group in the management of short-term commitments. The mandatory
resarve deposil with the CBAR is nol considered fo be a cash equivalent, due to restrictions on its
withdrawability, Cash and cash equivalenis are carried al amortized cost in the consolidated
statement of inancial posgition,
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(m) Leases

At incaplion of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
i&, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right o confral the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Az a lessoeo

Al commencement or on modification of a confract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract 10 each lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease componants and account for the lease and mon-lease components as a single lease
companent.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability &t the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commancemant date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying assel or o
restore the underlying assel or the site on which it is localed, less any lease incentives receied.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease fransfers ownership of the
undertying asset o the Group by the end of the lease lerm of the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflacts that the Group will exercise a purchase opfion, In that case the right-of-use assel will be
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying assel, which 15 determined on the same basis as
those of properly and equipment, In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability i initially measured at the present value of the lease payments thal are nol paid
at the commencement dale, discounted using the interest rate Implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannol be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally. the Group uses
ifs incremental borrowing ralé as the discoun! rate.

Thie Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type
of the assel leased.

Lease paymanis included in ihe measurement of the lease labilify comprise the following:
- fced payments, including in-substance fixed paymenis;

= variable lease paymenis that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as al the commencement date;

- amoaunis expecied o be payable under a residual value guarantes; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonalbly cerfain o exercise,
leaze payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension oplion, and penallies for early termination of a lease unbess the Group is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liabilty i measured al amorised cost using the effective interest mathod. It is
remeasured when there is a change in fulure lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expectad to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its asgsessment of whether it will exercisa a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment,

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a comesponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assel, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced o zero.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies [Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property and equipment’ and lease kabilities in ‘lease labilities' in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognise rnght-of-use assets and lease lkabilities for leases of low-

value assets and short-term leases. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

(n)  Property and equipment
fi} Owned assels

Items of property and equipment are stated al cost less accumudated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for buildings, which are stated al revalued amounts as described below.

Where an itlem of properly and equipment comprises major components having different useful
Iives, they are accounted for as separale items of property and equipment.

fii)  Revaluation

Al the end of each reporting period management assesses whether there is any indicalion of
impairment of premises and equipment. § any such indication exists, management eslimates the
recoverable amount, which is determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
its value in uge. The carrying amount s reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss for the year to the extent it exceads the previous revaluation swrplus
in equity. An impairment loss recognised for an assel in prior vears is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the asset's value in use or fair value [85s costs to sell

fiii)  Depreciation
Deapreciation s charged o profil or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the individual assets, Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally

construcied assels, from the ime an assel is completed and ready for use. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives and residual values are as follows:

Years Residual value,

o % of historical cost

Buildings 50-70 207%
Furmilure and equgment 510 -
Compubers d-5 .
Vehicies T=10 10°%
Other equipment 510 -
Leasahold improviements shorer of uselul ife and

ths berm of the underying lease

(o) Intangible assets

fi) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives thal are acquired separately are carried al cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amorisation 5 recognised on a
siraight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of ten years, The estimated useful kife and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

{ii) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are axpeacted
from use or disposal. Gaing or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the nel disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the assel, and are

recognised in profit or loss when the assel is derecognised.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

fifi}  Impairment of non-financial assels

Al the end of each reporling period, the Group reviews the camrying amounis of its non-financial
assets, other than invesiment property and deferred lax assels, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, i any such indication exisis, the
recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order to determine the extent of the mpairment
Ioss (if any). Whera it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unil to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assels are also
allocated fo individual cash-generating units, or otherwise thay are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be ideniified,

Recoverable amount is the higher of falr value less costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing value
inuse, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rale that reflects current market assessments of the me value of money and the risks specific to
the assel for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an assel (or cash-generaling unit) iz estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assat {or cash-generating wnit) is reduced to ils
recoverable amount, An impakment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant assel 5 carried al a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is frealed as a
revaluation decrease,

An impairment loss for goodwill is nat reversed. For other assets, when an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is Increased 1o
ihe revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 50 that the increased carmying amount does not
exceed the carrying amouni thal would have been delermined had no impairment loss been
recagnised for the asset [or cash-generating unil) in pricr years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 2 revalued amouni,
i which case the reversal of the impairment loss is ireated as a revaluation increase

(Pl Investment property

Imvestment properles are staled at cosl less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairmeant, wherne required. If any indicalion exisis thal investment properties may be impaired, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount as the higher of valuve in use and fair value less costs o
sell. The carrying amount of an investment property is written down to ifs recoverable amount
through a charge to profit or loss for the year. An impalrment loss recognised in prior vears s
reversed if there has been a subsequent change in the estimates used o determine the asset's
recoverable amount,

Subseguent expendilure is capitalised only when it is probable thal fulwre economic benefits
associated with it will low fo the Group, and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and mainienance cosls are expensed when incurred. If an invesiment properly becomes owner-
occupkad, it is reclassified o premises and equipment.

(=} Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of @ past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to setile the obligation, and a
rediable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision s the best estimate of the consideration required 1o sellie
the present obligation at the end of the reporling period, taking inlo account the risks and
unceriainties surrcunding the cbligation. When a provision is measured wsing the cash flows
estimated to setile the present obligation, s carrying amount is the present value of those cash
fliows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benelils required 1o sellle & provision are expecied to be
recoverad from a thied party, & receivable is recognised as an asset if il s virtually cerfain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies {Continuad)

ir} Insurance operations
{i} Non-life insurance operations

. Gross premiums writlen - Upon inception of a contract, premium are recorded as written
and are earned primarily on a pro-rata bagis over the term of the related policy coverage.

. Provision for uneamed premium - Provision for unearned premum represent the proportion
of pramium writlen in the period that relate 1o unexpired terms of policies in force as at the reporting
date, calculated on a lime apporfionment basis,

¥ Claims pald - Claims paid including claims handiing expenses are charged to the
consclidated slatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred,

i) Loss provision

Loss provision represents the accumulation of estimates for ulimate losses and includes
oufstanding claims provision ("OCGP™) and provision for losses incurred but not yet reported (IBNR").
Estimates of claims handling expenses are included in both OCP and IBMR. OCP is provided in
respect of claims reperted, bul net sefiled as al reporting date, The estimation is made on the basis
of information received by the Group during investigation of insurance cases after the reporing date
less regresses, |BMR is actuanally determined by the Group by line of business, and includes
assumplions based on prior years' claims and claims handling experence. The methods of
determining such eslimales and establishing the resulling provisions are continually reviewed and
updaled. Resulting adjustments are reflected in the consolidated statemaent of profit or loss and
pther comprehensive income as they arise. The loss reserves are esfimated on an undiscounted
basis due 1o ihe relatively quick pattern of claims notification and payment.

(iif}  Reinsurance

The Group assumes and cedes reinsurance in the normal cowrse of business, However, ceded
reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.

Reinsurance assels include balances due from reinsurance companies for paid claims, including
claims handling expensas, and premium ceded 1o the Group. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
are estimated in a manner consisient with the claim liability associaled with the reinsured policy.
Reinsurance payables are obligations of the Group for the transfer of reinsurance premium to
reinsurers and of the Group's share in claims in respect of insurance cases reinsured by the Group,

(s} Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position but are
dizdlosed unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent assel is not
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial posifion but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

(t) Share capital
{T) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are cassified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the ssue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

fii)  Dividends

The ability of the Group to declare and pay dividends iz subject to the rules and regulations of
Azarbaijani legislation.

Dividends inm relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained eamings in the
pariod when they are declared.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the dale that the dividend is declared,
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(u) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises currani and deferred lax. I s recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive Income,

() Current fax

Current tax comprises the axpectad tax payable or receivable on the laxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment lo
tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising
from dividends,

{ii}  Deferred fax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding lax bases used in the
compuiation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is recognised on tax losses, which can be utilised during
five years. Deferred tax labiliies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assels are ganerally recognised for alf deductible temporary differences and unutilised
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences and unutilized tax losses carried forward can be
ulilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from goodwill or fram the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and Habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting prodit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able 1o control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure. Deferred
tax assels arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investimenis and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred lax assels Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probabile that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assel o be recoverad,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is setiled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantivaly enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and sssels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, al the end of the reporting period, 10 recover or setile the
carrying amount of i1s assets and liabilities.

fiii}  Operating taxes
Azerbaijan also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Group's activities. These taxes

are included as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss
and othar comprahensive Income.

(¥) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 or later, and which the Group has net early adopted.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

IFRS 17 “Insurance Coniracts” (issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023). IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which has given companies
dispensation to carry on accounting for insurance contracts using existing practices. As a
consequence, it was difficult for investors to Compare and contras! the financial performance of
olherwise similar insurance companies. IFRS 17 is @ single principle-based standard to account for
all types of insurance contracts, including reinsurance caniracts that an insurer holds. The standard
requires recognition and measurement of groups of insurance contracts at: (i) a risk-adjusted
present value of the future cash flows (the fulfiment cash flows) that incorporates all of the available
information about the fuliment cash flows in a way thal is consistent with observable markst
intormation; phus (if this value is a liability) or minus (i this value i= an asset) (i) an amount
representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts {the contractual service margin), Insurers
will be recognising the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period they provide
insurance coverage, and as they are redeased from risk. If a group of contracts is or becomes loss-
making, an entity will be recognising the loss immediately, The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard on the Group's insurance business, which is nat material,

Amendments to IFRS 17 and an amendment to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). The amendments include a numbes
of clarifications intended to ease implementation of IFRS 17, simplify some requirements of the
slandard and transition. The amendments relate to eight areas of IFRS 17, and thay are not
intended to change the fundamental principles of the standard. The fellowing amendments to IFRS
17 were made:

. Effective date: The effective date of IFRS 17 {incorporating the amendments) has baen
deferred by two years 1o annugl reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023: and
the fixed expiry date of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 8 in IFRS 4 has also
been deferred to annual repariing periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

" Expected recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows: An entity is required to allocate pari
aof the acquisition costs to related expecied contract renewals, and 1o recognise those costs
a5 an assel until the entity recognises the contract renewals. Entities are required {o assass
the recoverabdity of the asset at each reporting date, and to provide specific ifarmation
about the asset in the notes to the financial statements.

* Confraclual service margin aftribulable o investment services: Coverage units should be
identified, considering the quantity of benefits and expected period of both insurance
coverage and investment services, for contracts under the variable fee approach and for
other contracts with an ‘investment-return service' under the general model. Costs related io
investment activities should be included as cash flows within the boundary of an insurance
contract, 1o the extent that the entity performs such activities to enhance benefils from
insurance coverage for the policyholder.

» Reinsurance contracts held — recovery of losses: When an entity recognises a loss on initial
recognition of an onerous group of underiying insurance contracts, or on addition of ONETouS
underlying contracts to a group, an entity should adjust the contraciual servics margin of a
refated group of reinsurance contracts held and recognise a gain on the reinsurance
confracts held. The amount of the loss recovered from & reinsurance contract held is
determined by multiplying the loss recognised on underlying insurance contracts and the
percentage of claims on underlying Insurance contracts that the entity expects o recover
from the reinsurance contract held. This requirement would apply enly when the reinsurance
contract held is recognised before or at the same time as the loss s recognised on the

underlying insurance contracis,
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

. Other amendmants: Other amendments include scope exclusions for some credit card (or
similar) contracts, and some loan conlracts; presentation of insurance contract assels and
liabilities in the statement of financial position in portfolios instead of groups; applicability of
the risk mitigation oplion when mitigating financial risks using reinsurance contracts held and
non-dervative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss; an accounting policy
choice to change the estimates made in previous interim financial statements when applying
IFRS 17: inclusion of income tax payments and receipts that are specifically chargeable to
the policyholder under the terms of an insurance contract in the fulfiiment cash flows; and
sebecied transition reliefs and other minor amendments.

Sale or Contribution of Assets befween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASB). These amendments
address an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets betwaen an investor and its associate or joinl venture. The main
consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves
a business. A partial gain or loss is recognised when a fransaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even If these assets are held by a subsidiary.

Classification of labilities as current or non-current - Amendments to IAS 1 (issued on 23
January 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022). Thase
narrow scope amendments clarify that liabilties are classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights thal exist at the end of the reparting peried. Liabilities are non-current if the
enfity has a substantive right, at the end of the reporting pericd, to defer settlement for at least
twelve monthe, The guidance no longer requires such a right to be unconditional. Management's
expectations whether they will subsequently exercise the right to defer settlement do not affect
classification of liabilities. The right to defer only exists if the entity complies with any relevant
conditions as of the end of the reporting period. A liabildy is classified as current if a condition is
breached at or before the reporting date even if a waiver of that condition is obtained from the lender
after the end of the reporting period. Conversely, a loan is classified as non-current if a loan
covenan! s breached only after the reporting date. In addition, the amendments include clarifying
the classification requirements for debt 8 company might seltle by converting it into equity.
‘Settlement’ is defined as the extinguishment of a liability with cash, other resources embodying
economic benefits or an entity's own equity instruments. There is an exception for convertible
instruments that might be converted into equity, but only for those instruments where the conversion
option s classified as an equity instrument as a separate component of 8 compound financial
Imstrument.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current, deferral of effective date - Amendments
to 1AS 1 (issued on 15 July 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023). The amendment to IAS 1 on classification of liabilites as current or non-current was
tssued in January 2020 with an original effective date 1 January 2022. However, in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic, the effective date was deferred by one year to provide companies with more
time to implement classification changes resulting from the amended guidance.

Proceeds before intended use, Onerous contracis - cost of fulfilling a contract, Reference
to the Conceptual Framework — narrow scope amendments to IAS 16, IAS 37 and IFRS 3, and
Annual iImprovements to IFRSs 2018-2020 - amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS
41 (issued on 14 May 2020 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022). The amendment to |AS 16 prohiblis an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of PPE
any procesds recetved from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for ils
intended use. The proceeds from selling such items, togather with the costs of producing them, are
now recognised in profit or loss. An entity will use IAS 2 to measure the cost of those items. Cost
will not include depreciation of the assel being tested because it is not ready for its intended use.
The amendment to IAS 16 also clarifies that an enfity is “testing whether the asset is functioning
properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial
performance of the asset is not rebavant 1o this assessment. An asset might therefore be capable
of operaling as intended by management and subject to depreciation before it has achieved the
level of operating performance expecied by management.
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3 SBignificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The amendment to 1AS 37 clarifies the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil 8 contract’, The amendment
explains that the direct cost of fulfilling a confract comprises the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract, and an allocation of other costs thal relate directly lo fulfilling, The amendment also
clarifies that, before a separate provision for an onerous contract i established, an entity
recognises any impairment koss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract, rather
than on assets dedicated to that confract.

IFRS 3 was amended to refer o the 2018 Conceplual Framework for Financial Reporting, in order to
determine what constitutes an assel or a liability in a business combination. Prior 1o the amendment,
IFRS 3 referred to the 2001 Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. In addiion, a new
exception in IFRS 3 was added for liabilities and contingent abdites. The exceplion specifies that, for
some types of iabdites and contingent Eabiities, an entity applying IFRS 3 should instead refer to LAS
37 of IFRIC 21, rather than the 2018 Conceplual Framework. Without this new exception, an entity
would have recognised some liabilities in a business combination that it would not recognise under
IAS 37, Therefore, immediately after the acquisition, the enlity would have had to derecognise such
liabilities. and recognise a gain thal did not depict an ecomomic gain. 11 was also clarified that the
acquirer should not recognise conlingent assets, as defined in 1AS 37, at the acquisition date.

The amendment to IFRS 9 addresses which fees should be included in the 10% test for darecognition
of financial liabilities, Costs or fees could be paid to either third parties or the lender. Under the
amendment, costs or fees paid to thind parties will ot be included in the 10% test

Bustralive Example 13 that accompanies [FRS 16 was amendad to remove the ilustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements. The reazon for the amesdment is 1o
remove any polential confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.

IFRS 1 allows an exemption f a subsidiary adopls IFRS al a later date than its parent, The subsidiary
can measure its assels and labilitles at the carrying amounts that would be included in its parent’s
consolidated financial statements, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS, if no adjustments
were made for consolidation procedures and for the effecis of the business combination in which the
parent acquired the subsidiary. IFRS 1 was amended 1o allow entities that have taken this IFRS 1
exemplion to also measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the
parent, based on the parent's date of transition to IFRS. The amendmant 1o IFRS 1 extends the above
exemplion to cumulative franslation differences, in order to reduce costs for first-lime adoplers. This
amandment will also apply to associates and joint ventures that have taken the same IFRS 1
axemplion,

The requirement for entities to exclude cash fows for taxation when measuring fair value under (A5
41 was removed. This amendment is intended to align with the requirement in the standard to discount
cash flows on a post-fax basis,

Amendmenis fo IAS 8; Definition of Accounting Estimates (issued on 12 February 2021 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary 2023). The amendment 1o 1AS B
clarified how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates.

Deferred fax related to assets and Nabilities arising from a single transaction — Amendmenis
fo IAS 12 (issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual perlods beginning on or affer 1
January 2023), The amendments o 1AS 12 specify how to account for deferred tax on ransactons
such as leases ard decommissioning obligations. In specified circumstances, entities are exempt
from recognising deferred tax when they recognise assets or [iabdities for the first time. Previousty,
there had been some uncertainty about whether the exemplion applied to fransaclions such as leases
and decommissioning cbligations = fransaclions for which both an assel and a labilily are
recognised, The amendments clarify that the exemption does not apply and that entities are required
o recognise deferred tax on such lransactions. The amendments requine companies 10 recognise
deferred tax on fransactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - Amendments to IFRS 16 (isswed on 31 March 2021 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021). In May 2020 an amendment ta
IFRS 16 was issued that provided an oplional practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether
a rent concession related to COVID-19, resulting in a reduction in lease payments due on or bafore
30 June 2021, was a lease modification. An amendment issued on 31 March 2021 extended the date
of the practical expedient from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022,

Uniless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations ase not expected to affect
significantly the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

{w) Changes in presentation

i} The Group reclassified interest expense on derivate agreemenis from interest expense financial
statement line 1o "gains less losses from financial derivatives® financial statement line as the coupon
payments are set o guaraniee setllemant rate agreed at maturity dale on currency swaps.

The Group beleves such presentation is more representative of the tofal costs associated with
hedging activities.

Where necessary, cofresponding figures have been adjusted to conform to the presentation of the

current year amounis. The effect of reclassification was as follows. for the consolidated siatement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Decernber 2020:

As originally Reclassification  As reclassified for

presenied the year anded

3 December 2020

Infisrest aupansea (27, 700) 7352 [20,348)
Lossas less gains from financial dedvitives 3474 (7.352) [3,978)
Net interest income 36,458 7352 43,840
Profit for the year 6,580 . 6980

iy The Group separately disclosed “repossessed collateral” on the consolidated statement of
financial position due to significance of the amountsand the effect of rectassification was as follows:

As originally Reclassification As reclassified for

presented the year ended

H December 2020

Repossessed collateral - 4,800 4. 600
Other assets 17.107 (4,800) 12,307

Todal assels B&d 487 954 46T
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iif) The Group decided to present operating activities within its consolidated statement of cash flows
using direct method as such presentation i considered to be more informative and relevant for
financial institutions. The effect of reclassification was as follows for the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020:

As reclassi-
As originally Reclassifi- fied at
presented cation 31 December
Cash flows from operating activities
Indirect method .
Profil before incoma tax 7.013 (7.013) -
Adjustments for:
Expacted credit Iosses on interest beanng assels 10158 {10,198) 7
Provision|recovery) on ather operalions 368 {369) -
Wet gain from derivative financial instruments [3.374) 3374 -
Foreign exchange gain (54} £ -
Depreciation 2,465 i2.465) -
Amartization 254 {254) .
iLessygain on disposal of proparty and equipment 165 {165)
Interest expanse on lease iabilities 228 (229)
Met change in inbenast accruals {2,110} 2,110
Direet mathod
Intarast recaliwed - BB 549 68, 540
Inleras! paid . {12.987) (12 Q8T
Fees and commissions received - 12,125 12,125
Fess and commissions paid " {7.912) (T.012)
Nef gainfosses from cumancy dealing - 8,236 B.236
Ciher operating income recalved : a7 817
Salaries and other employes bonefits paid . (30, 742) {30,742)
Adminiglralive axpensas paid . (12.273) (12,273)
Mat gaing on operations with foresgn cumancy .
dervatives (7,352) (7.352)
Gross premiums writhen 1.715 1,716
Premium cadad on reinsurance - (215) (215)
Claims paid. gross - (398} (368)
Claims ceded io reinsurars . - -
Cash inflow from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 15,111 44537 18,563
Changes In cperating assels and labiilies
(IncreaseYdecraass in oparating assats:
Loans (o banks 15647 - 15,897
Loans 1o customers 30,685 - 30,585
Cilhir assats 2,793 - 2,793
imcreasedecreass) in operating vabiites: )
Amounts dug io credit institutions (2,208) £ 12,209)
EET‘.;m”am e o {309.867) - (399,B6T)
Other borrowad funds 14,546 [14.548) -
Cithar liabilities 1457 - 1457
Het cash flows used in operating activities before
income tax {321,7TBT) (10,094) [331,881)
Cash flows from investing activitles
Acouisition of imesimen! securities {35.013) . {35,013)
Procesds from sale and repayment of investment 16,373
SECLrilaS I = 16,373
Inferesi income recelved on Invesimeants in debl
seciiiion - 1.424 1,424
Acquisition of propenty and equipment (1,821} - (1.821)
Procaads from sale of proparty and equipmeant 8583 - g3
Acquisition of intangible assets {1,279) - {1,2749)

Net cash used in investing activities (21,047) 1.424 {18.623)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from ofher bomowed Tunds 30 447 30 447
Repayrsent of other bormowad funds [23.645) (23,845)
Interest expanse paid on olher borowed funds (5.426) (5. 426)
Interest expense paid on subordinated borrowings - {1, M0} {1.706)
Raopaymeant of pancipal lease liabilites (953) - {B53)
Het cash {used in) from financing activities (B53) B,670 7.717
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (343,787) (343,787)
Effact of changes in exchange rabtes on cash and

cash eguivalents as0 = B
Cash and cash equivalents as al 1 January 726,560 - 726,560
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 183 632 . 383,632

(=) Presentation of consolidated statement of financial position in order of liquidity

The Group does not present current and non-curreni assels and liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position, Instead, assels and liabilities are presented in order of
their liquidity. Refer to Note 31 for analysis of financial instruments by their maturity. The following
table provides information on amounts expecied o be recovered or settled before and after twelve

mantis after the reporting period for ibems that are not analysed in

3 Decembear 2021

Mate 31.

31 December 2020

Amounts expected to be Amounts expected to ba
recoverad or settled recoverad or settled
Within Afer Within After
12 monthe 12 months 12 months 12 months
Hote after the afterthe  Total after the after the  Total
reporting  reporting reporting  reporting
pericd periad period period
ASSETS
Propaty and
equipment 20 - 43153 43153 - 38,841 38,841
intangibe assels - 1,967 1,967 - 1,857 1,857
Assats held for sale 20 - 20 419 . B19
Ditenpiicomein: ; 2052 2,082 2220 2220
Citnar non-financial
anats 21 4,791 120 4,811 3,315 120 3,435
Repossessad
ph gt 23 4. TE3 - 4,783 4,800 = 4,800
Gondwill ] 46T 4ET 46T 467
LIABILITIES
Curment iIncome tax
; 1 - = - -
aility . | L] 985
Othsr non-financial 28 6,050 1244 0,204 4,405 921 5328

liabilties
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4 Met Interest Income
2021 2020
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method
Loans bo customars B4 442 68,107
Cash and cash equivalants 1144 3.864
Irvestrment sacuries measured at amortised cost 1,865 1424
Loans ko banks a7 045
88,423 Td.340
Other interest iIncome
Irvastment securities mandalodly maaswened at FWVTPL o 46
- 48
Interest expense
Currenl acoounts and depoalts from cusiomens {19, 7ET) {13,115}
Oiher bormrowed funds (3.573) {5,303}
Subordinated bomawings i 1.40E) {1,688)
Lease Rabdities [301) [229)
Issued bonds 8] |
Amourts dus to cradit institulions - (13}
[27.281) (20,348)
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5 Expected credit losses on interest bearing assets

Expected credit losses amount on inleres! bearing assets recognised in the consolidated siatemeant

of profit or loss and olher comprehensive income is comprised of the following:

Loans to customens

Imvesirment securtes measured al amorised oosi

Loans lo banks

Expected credit losses on Interest bearing assets, lotal

6 Met gain on foreign exchange operations

Dealing, net
Transtation differencas, net

T Fea and Commission Income

Plastic cands sanates
Sellemenis

Cash operations
Guaranted: lafers
Other oparations

8 Fee and Commission Expense

Plastic cards services
Paymani systems
Settlemants
Rieifguranca

Cagh oparabions

Cithar operations

2021 2020
4,532 {9,991)
7 (177)
&2 (30)
4,601 {10,198)
2021 2020
5,937 8.138
190 a8
6,127 8.236
2021 2020
9,687 5,958
4,205 3.528
038 1,725
236 459
728 415
16,894 12,125
2021 2020
6,343 5,069
3506 1,157
1,160 BTS
459 240
276 201
a2 52
347 318
12,273 7812

LH]



Bank Respublika OJ5C
Neotes to the Consolldated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, urless otherwise sfated)

] Other Income, Net
20 2000
InGorme: on regress and deductibles 152 119
Dividend incoms 113 -
Govemmant grant - 520
Other income 673 169
838 BAT

Durimg the vear 2020 and earlier the CBAR issued loans io the Group in the amount of AZN 2,699
thousand arnd 10,674 thousand with annual interest rate of 0.1% based on the decree of the
President of the Republic of Azerbaljan signed on 28 February 2019 "On the additional measures
related to the sclufion of problem loans of individuals in the Republic of Azerbaijan”, These low-
interesi rate loans were provided by the CBAR for restructuring problem loans and were measured
al fair value on initial recognition, Difference between the consideration received and the fair value
of the loans was recognised as a government grant in the amount of AZN 529 thousand in 2020,
Mo such financing recaived during 2021,

10 Net Premiums Writhen

The following table presenis premiums written regarding the Group's major business lines for the
yvear ended 31 Decamber 2021:

Vehicle Property Others Total
Gross pramitems written 2,776 434 - I 4,538
Premiums ceded ko reinsurers [av} [(39) {132) (268}
Met premiums written 3670 385 WI_ 4.2T1

The following table presents premiums written regarding the Group’s major business lines for the
vear ended 31 December 2020

Vehicle  Property Others Total
Gross promiums writlen 1,184 408 118 1,715
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (6] (100) {18) (215)
Nt pramiums written 1,085 306 29 1,500

1" Claims Paid

The following table presents claims paid for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 21 December
2020:

2021 2020
Gross claims posd 1,338 308
Claims ceded b0 rainsuners {60) -

Net claims paid 1.2TH 5B

k1



Bank Respublika OJSC
Mofes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis -31 December 2021

(Amounts are presented in thousands of Arerbafiani Manals, unless otherwise slaled)

12 Dperating Expenses

2021 20240
Staff costs 34820 26,868
Payrments 1o Sockal Pension Fund 4,833 3,997
Oither operating axpensas 3848 2,018
Depreciation 3,007 2485
Fees paid o Deposit Insurance Fund 2513 1,487
Taxes olher than income lax 1,760 1,544
Advartising and markeating 1,347 ard
Oifice expenses 1278 641
Profassional senvicas fees 1,268 1,642
Software costs 1,260 1,369
Communication expensas 883 B45
Security cosls 716 Ll
Repairs and manienance 550 454
Transporation and (rawvel ara 265
Leasa expensa (shor-term and low value items) 333 153
Amarization 213 254
Mambership fees 28 236
Sponsorship and charity - 824
58,335 45 B48
13 income Taxes
2021 2020
Currani mooma tax charge (G85) A
Recognilion of praviously unracognised dedwcible temporary
differences - 1434
Deferred income tax charge {168) {1,467}
Income tax expense for the year {1,153} (33}
In 2021, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 20% (2020: 20%).
20 2020
Prafii before tax 10,211 7.013
Incomi ax at the applicable tax rate {2,042} {1.400)
Tax affect of non-deductible expanses (G (G4)
Unrecognsad defermed tax assel on tax ases of subsidiany 336 -
Incomix rol subject bo prafil lax at 20% 25
Cihar 598 -
Change in unrecognised defemed tax assels - 1,434
income tax expense for the year {1.153) (33)

Included in obher ling is AZN 240 thousand tax effect of recovery of impairment on repossessed

coliateral.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
tAmounts are presenfed in thousands of Azerbaflani Manals, unless ctherwize slaled)

13 Income Taxes (Continued)

{2y Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred lax assels and liabiliies represent the potential income tax benefit and charge
respectively, arising from lemporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with IFRS and their values for tax

accounting purposes reported in accordamce with the local tax regulations,

Movemenls in temporary differences durng the vears ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

presented as follows:

Defermad (ax assals in relation fo:

Loans fo customears

Loans o banks

Imastment securities
Drerivativa financial assets
Property and intangible assats
Assats held for sale

Diher assats

Dther borrowed funds

Leass liabilites

Derivative financial llabilites
Other liabilites

Tax loss cany forwands

Met deferred tax assets
Recognised defered lax asset
Recognised defomed lax Fability
Met deferred tax assets

Balance 1 Recognised Balance
January 2021 in profit or 31
loss  December
2021
1,0e8 foa 1,794
a7 (212} (115)
{31) 1 (30}
(476) B4 (352}
(1,058) B34 (222)
{164} 164 :
(788} TET {21}
{338) 164 (172)
500 128 628
63 168 231
(198} 512 314
3,519 (3486) 33
2,220 (168) 2,052
5,268 (2,265) 3,004
{3.049) 2,087 (952)
2,220 (168) 2,082

3



Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments -31 December 2027
(Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbaiani Manats, unless otherwise slated)

13 Income Taxes (Continued)

Balance 1 Recognised  Balance
January 2020 in profit or 4|
loss Dacomber
2020
Defemed tax assels in redation o)
Loans 1o customers 3 1,083 1.080
Loans to banks o1 B ar
Invesiment secunties (15) (16) {31
Derivalive inancial assels - (478} {476)
Froperty and intangible assels [1.236) 180 (1.056)
Assats hakd for sabe = {164} {164)
Other assats {245) (543} (TBH)
DOither borrowisd funids {425) 1] {&36)
Leasa liabilities 591 (91} 500
Derivativie financial liabilites . 63 63
Oiher liabilities 141 (A3 (198}
Tax loss carry forwands 4,788 (1.268) 3518
Het deferred tax assals 3,887 {1.46T) 2,220
Recognised diferred lax assel 5611 [342) 5,269
Recognsad defarred tax liability [1.924) (1,125)  (3.049)
Het defarred tax assots 3,687 {1,467} 2,200
{Unrecognised deferred lax assetyRecognition of previously
unrecognised deductible emporary differences (1.434) 1.134__ -
MNat defarred lax assets 2,253 (33) 2210

14 Earnings Per Share

The profit and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculation of basic and diluted

earnings per share are as follows:

2021 2020
Profit for the year altibudable 1o owners of the Bank 0,528 6,904
Wealghtad average number of ardinany shares for the puarpose
of basic and diluted profit per share 29,984,118 20,084,118
Profit per share — basic and diluted [AZN) 0.318 0230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis -31 December 2021

(Armounts are presented in thousands of Arerbafian! Manals, unless otherwise slated)

i5 Cash and Cash Equivalants

31 Decembar 31 Dacember

2021 2020

Cash on hand 49401 & SO8

Mostio accowums with CBAR 230,182 T84

Mostro accownis and ovemighl placaments with ofher banks 3,738 5077
Cash equivalents

CHAR noles 4 180 348,184

Short-lerm depasits with CEAR - 17,282

Tatal cash equivalents 4180 55,446

Total cash and cash equivalents 287,502 383,832

All cash and cash eguivalent balances are in Stage 1 and their ECL is nod significant as for

31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had outstanding balances with one bank (31 December 2020:
one bank), whose balances exceed 10% of equity. These balances as al 31 December 2021 are

AZM 234 361 thousand (31 December 2020: AZN 322,960 thousand).

The tabde below discloses the credil quality of cash and cash eqguivalents balances based on credit
risk grades at 31 Deceamber 2021. Refer 1o Nate 31 for the description of the Group's credit risk

grading system, For fair value disclosure refer to Mote 346,

3 December 2021

31 December 2020

Exceallant 3472 178

Good 234,433 27,576

Satisfactory 168 =

Mod rirled . 282
“Total cash and cash equivalents,

excluding cash on hand 238,101 328,037




Bank Respublika OJSC
MNaotes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbaifani Manals, unless otherwize staled)

16 Loans to Banks

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Blocked accounts 13,010 11,858
Lions and deposis 14,130 11,608
Mandatory reserve with the CBAR 6,020 5,358
Loans to banks, gross 33,160 28,824
Loss allowance [(GBO) (742}
Leoans to banks, net of loss allowance 32 480 28,082

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no bank (31 December 2020; one bank), whose balances
individually exceeded 10% of equily (the gross value of this balance as at 31 December 2020 was
AZM 8,521 thousand).

Ag at 31 December 2021 and 2020, included in balances of Loans to banks are (he biocked
guarantee deposits placed by the Growp for its plastic cards operations totaling AZM 5,105 thousand
and AZN 5,102 thousand, respeciivaly.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 AZN equivalent 4,147 thousand and 2,989 thousand are the
amounts of deposils in two banks (31 December 2020: two banks) blecked against the Group's
guaraniees.

&A% at 3 December 20271 AZN equivalent 3,400 thousand is the amount of deposi in one bank (31
December 2020; AZM equivalent 3400 thousand in one bank) blocked against the Group's
darnvalive conlracls.

Az at 31 December 2021 AZN eguivalent 357 thousand is the amount of deposit in ane bank (31
December 2020: AZN equivalent 357 thousand in one bank) blocked against the Group's forward
confracts.

Loss allowancn

As at 31 December 2021, gross amounts of Loans to banks included in Stage 3 were AZN 524
ihousand (2020: AZN 524 thousand). Al other Loans fo banks balances are in Stage 1 and their
ECL s AZM 156 thousand and AZN 218 thousand as for 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020, respectively,

2021 2020
Siage 1 Siage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
Loans to banks
Balance al 1 Jamaany 218 oS24 T42 188 524 Ti2
et rameasurament of loss
allowance [L=74] - (e} 30 - 20

Balance at 31 December 156 524 -1 218 Sadd T4




Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbaiiani Manals, uniess otherwise sfated)

16 Loans to Banks (Continued)

Mandatory reserve with the CBAR

The mandatory resenve deposit is a non-inferes! bearing deposit cabculated in accordance with
regulations issued by the CBAR and whose withdrawability is restricted.

The following tables below coniain an analysis of loans o banks balances by credil quality at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 based on credil risk grades and discloses those
balances by three stages for the purpose of ECL measurement. Refer to Note 32 for the description
of credit risk grading system used by the Group and the approach to ECL measurement, including
the definition of defaull and SICR as applicable to loans to banks balances.,

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
31 December 2021 {12-menths ECL)
Placermiens wilh oiher banks
- Excallent 12,653 - 12,653
- Good 16,783 - 16,783
- Satisfactory 3,180 - 3,180
- Dafault - 54 524
Gross carrying amount 32,636 534 33,160
Credit loss abowance [ 156) (524} (660}
Carrying amount 32,480 - 32 480
Stapge 1
Stage 3 Total
(12-months ECL)
31 Decamber 2020
Placemants with othas
banks
- Excellent 11,334 . 11,334
- Good 15,507 . 15,597
= Defaull . B34 B34
- N rated 1,368 : 1,350
Gross carrying amount 28,300 524 20,824
Credit loss allowance (218} [524) [T42)
Carrylng amount 28,082 = 78 DEZ




Bank Respublika OJSC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
{Armounis are presented in thousands of Azrerbailani Manats, unless otherwise slated)

17 Loans to Customers

SME loans

Micro loans

Fetail koans

Morigage loans

Card loans

Gross loans to customaerns
Loss aliowance

Het loans o customars

31 December 2021 3 December 2020

327475 240,837

206,962 102 526

140,010 69,414

54,562 29,560

2,000 1.581

735,800 453,918

20, 729) (21,084)

715,180 442,824

The following tables below show reconciliations from the cpening io the closing balances of the
loans to customers balance in total for 31 December 2021:

Gross carrylng value as at 1 January 2021
Movements with impact on credf ss alowance
charge for the period:

Mew assels onginated or purchasad
Derecognised durng the pariod

Transfers:

- to Iifetime {from Stage 1 to Stage 2)

- o credit-impaired (from Slage 1 and Staga 2 to
Slage 3)

- to 12-months ECL ({from Stage 2 and Stage 3
o Stage 1)

= from Stage 3 1o Stage 2

Total movements with impact on credit loss
allowanee charge for the pariod

Movements withow! impact on cradil loss
allowance charge for the parod:
Amounts writlen off

At 31 Decembear 2021

Stage1 Stage?  Stage3 POCI Total
387,781 43,181 31,610 1,346 463,918
824,343 . - - B24,343
(490,269) (44,189) (13,898}  (1,348) (549,702)
(B6,584)  B6,584 - % .
(6,118)  (676) 6,792 - -
11681 (8.284)  (2.397) - -
- 4780 (4,780) 5
253,055 37,215 (14,283) (1,348) 274,841
- - (2,650 = (2,650)
640,838 80,306 14,677 - 735900
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Stage1  Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
ECL as at 1 January 2021 (4,214} (3,555) (12.585) (T40)  (21,004)
Movements wilh impact on credih es afidwance
charge for the period:
Mew assets onginated or purchased i 101,868) - . . (10, 965)
Deracognisad durning the pariod 1,758 1,384 56006 B24 8,862
Changes fo ECL measuramant model
assumplions [TE1) 186 (2477) (B4} (3,136)
Transiers:
= o lifetime (from Stage 1 o Stage 2) 5523 {5,589} - [685)
- fo credit-impaired (from Stage 1 and Stage 2 10
Stape 3) 2,180 274 (3,0386) - {&TE)
« g 12-months ECL (frem Stage 2 and Stage 3 1o
Stage 1) (T1) G928 1,065 1,922
- from Stage 3 o Stage 2 . 194} 1,714 1,685
Total movements with impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the period {2,334) {2.911) aoar 740 (1,478)
Movemenis wilhout impact on credfl loss
illowancs charge for the parod;
Amounts writhen off - - 2,650 - 2,850
Urwinding of discount on presant value of ECLS & - (aa7) - {80T)
At 31 Decambar 2021 = _{9._54!} |6, 466) {7.7T15) - (20,729)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the

loans to customers balance in tolal for 31 December 2020

1 2 3 POCI Taotal
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2020 454, 494 21.306 8,565 1,197 495582
Mew assels onginated or purchasad 234 604 . - 466 235570
Derecognised during the pefiod (240.874) (9,333 (3,348) (444) (262.999)
Tranafar 1o Stage 1 4,006 {3,870 (136) - .
Transfer 1o Stage 2 (36,707) 36,742 (35) 3
Transfer 1o Stage 3 (28.742)  (1.664) 30,406 _
Movamends withow impact on credif foss
affowance change for the penioo
Amounts writlen off - (4,892) (373)  (5.265)
Uinwinding of discount on present value of ECLs X 2 1,050 x 1,050
At 31 December 2020 387, 7B 43,181 31,610 1,346 463,918
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17 Loans to Customers {Continued)

Stage1 Stage?  Staged POCI _ Total

EGL as at 1 January 2020 {4,552) (B44)  (4.883) (379) (10,668)
Mew assels onginated or purchased {3,978) - . . (3.978)
L

UM S0 ARSI 0 1,566 (1.138)  (5707) (734}  (6.013)
Transder to Stage 1 (291) 264 27 )
Transfer to Stage 2 1874 (1.804) 20 £ 2
Tramsfer to Stage 3 1,167 57 (1,224} . -
Movaments wiltrout! impadst on crpll Ioss

Amounts written off - . 4,892 373 5,265
Recoverios of assets previously written off . - [4,850) - {4,850)
grcrinandlng of discount on presant valwe of = ) (1,050} - {1,050)
At 31 December 2020 (4,218)  (3,555) (12,585)  (740) (21,084)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening 1o the dosing balances of the
loans to cusiomers balance for SME segment for 31 December 2021:

SME loans Stage1 Stage2 Stagel POCI Total
Gross carrylng value as at 1 January 2021 207,924 8,460 24 426 23 240837
Movements wilh impac! an creal foss allowance

charge for the period:

Mew asseis orginated or purchased 360,748 - - 36D, 748
Derecognised during the perod (271,310} (107)  [11,445) (23) (282,885)
Transiors:

- o Mifetime {from Stage 1 io Stage 2) {13.271) 13301 £

- 1o credit-impaired (from Stage 1 and Stage 2 1o
Stage 3) {5,1109 - 5110 s -

- o 12-months ECL (from Siage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1) 4,870 [3.3204) {1,566)

« from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 4,240 14,240) - -
Total movemants with Impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the period B4,027 14,100  [12,741) (23)  BE.BE1

Movemenls withou! impac! on croal loss

atowance charge for the parod:

Amaunts written off . [F25) . [X25)
At 31 December 2021 292 855 22,560 11,960 - 327,375
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iT Loans to Customers (Continued)

SME loans Siage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCl Total
ECL as al 1 January 2021 (2,961) (653) {9,200 {11} (12,930)
Movernants will irpact on credf inss

affowance charge for tha period:

New assals orginabed or purchased {3.070) . + - {3.070)
Daracognised during the period 1,076 107 4,508 13 5.704
Changes to ECL measuramant micded

asSUMptions (662) (170 (1.670) () (2.504)
Transfars:

- ko lifetima (from Stage 1 to Stage 2) 301 {334) = (33)
« lo credil-impaired (from Stage 1 and Stage 2

ta Stage 3) 1,576 - {1.938) {362)
- i 12-rmonths ECL Stage 2 and 5 3

tuiltaﬁ 1) b - {48) 305 692 - S48
- from Stage 3 o Stage 2 = {82) 1,705 - 1.613
Total movermnents with impact on credit loss

allowance charge for the period (B2T) [184) 3,387 11 2,387
Movamants withow! impach on credif loss

allowance charge for the parfod;

Amounts writlen off - - 325 - 325
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLS - - {468} - [46E)
At 31 December 2021 [3.788) {843} (8,055} = (10,686)

The following tables balow show reconciliations from the opening o the clesing balances of the
loans to customers balance for SME segment for 31 December 2020;

SME loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 FOCI Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2020 238,544 8,241 3224 L) 251,026
WNew assals originated or purchased 104,041 - " 18 104,059
Derecognised during the peniod (107, 765) [2.884) {2.265) {12} (112926}
Transfer o Stage 1 2.240 (2340 - . -
Transfer o Stage 2 15.813) 5,814 {n

Transhor lo Stge 3 (23.418) (1371) 24,700 -
Amounts written off - - {1,864) {1,864}
Emﬂim of discount on present value of £ ~ 542 547
At 31 December 20020 207,928 8,460 24,426 21 240,837
SME loans Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 POCI Total
ECL as at 1 January 2020 (3,305) {599) (1,927) {5) (5838)
Mew financial assets originated or purchaged {1,342) (140} (20) - {1.502)
Changes o ECL measuramsnt model

assurnplions 850 1549 {5,538) ] [4.853)
Transfer o Stage 1 (178} 178 . - -
Transier ko Stage 2 7a (73) 1 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 836 40 (876} = =
Movemenls withou! impect on credll loss & - -
alloveance charge for [he pafiad:

Amounts wiittan off - 1,864 - 1.654
Recoveries of assels previoushy writlen -off = (2.281) [2.261)
Iélglt:ﬁgnfﬁsmﬂmmmﬂvﬂh&n! ) B (542) (542
At 3 December 2020 [2.9461) (G5H) (9,289} {11) {12,930}

m
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opaning 1o the clesing balances of the
loans to customers balance for Micro segment for 31 December 2021:

Micro loans Stage1 Stage2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Grogs carmying value as at 1 January 2021 74,359 24,11 31Mm2 684 102,526
Moverments with impact on credil loss alowance

Miew agseats onginaled of purchased 264 820 - . = 254,629
Darecognisad during the: pariod {112,368} (35411) {1,345) (B84) (149, 768)
Transfars:

= by lifetirne (from Stage 1 to Stage 2) {71,378) 71,378

= bo credil-impaingd (from Stage 1 and Stage 2 1o

Staga 3) (347} (256) 603 - .
= b 12-rnths ECL (from Stage 2 and Stage 3

1o Stage 1) 4683  (4,163) {520} - .
- from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 10 (10} - -
Total movemenis with impact on credit loss

allowance charge for the period T52 31,556 {1,272] {E64) 104,841
Movemants withow! impact on creadil logs

alfowance charge for the pamod:

Amounts written off - - {405) . (405)
At 31 December 2021 149,580 55,747 1,635 - 208,982
Micro loans Stage1 Stage2  Stage 3 POCI Total
ECL as at 1 January 2021 (T83) (2477} (1,887) (414)  (5.521)
Moverments with impact on credif ioss aflowance

charge for the peviod:

Mew assats onginated or purchased {7.247) . = - (7.247)
Derecognised during the perod 478 1168 S00 417 2983
Changes to ECL medsurament model

assumptions 151 472 {57) {3 563
Translars:

= ko lifetime (from Stage 1 1o Stage Z) 5186 (5,178 - . 7
- o credit-impaired (from Stage 1 and Stage 2 1o

Stage 3) 510 48 (704) - (148)
- o 12-months ECL (from Slage 2 and Stage 3 to

Stage 1) {16} 464 204 : 742
- from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - T - 7
Total movemants with impact on credkt loss

alleweance charge for the perod {B38) {3.008) 440 414 [3.093)
Movemeniz withow! impact on credil ipsg

allowance charge for the period!

Amounts written off - - 405 - 405
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLS - {BT) * (87)
At 31 December 2021 (1.701) {5 ABG) i1, 9048) - (B,296]
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i Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the
loans to cusiomers balance for Micro segment for 31 December 2020

Micro loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2020 114,136 3813 435 4568 118,873
Mow assels onginated or purchased 65,044 - - 469 66,513
Derecognised during the period (B2.221) (41} (304) (146} (B2.712)
Transier to Stage 1 305 (298} i) - -
Trangfer o Stage 2 {20,860) 20,881 i1} =
Transfar to Staga 3 {3,045) {144} 3,188 - -
Arnotirs wiithen off - . (300} (128) {428)
I.E.;rg::'lsnﬂlng of discount on present value of ; . 280 T80
At 31 December 2020 T4, 359 24,191 3,312 664 102,526
Micro loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Staged POCI  Total
ECL as at 1 January 2020 |ara) i104) (31E8) (15B)  1,248)
Mew financial assets ofginaled or purchased (571} {1.478) (8] - {&128)
Changaes o ECL measurement madal

by stebaiy 310 [BEE) (371)  (3B6) (1.313)
Transfer (o Stage 1 (36) 27 a9 "
Transfar 1o Stage 2 64 [B1) 2 - -
Transfer o Stage 3 147 5 {152) -
Movemeants withou! impact on credif loss

alipwance charge for the perod);

Amaunts writlen off 00 128 428
Hmﬂas of E_lmlﬁ previously writhen -of - - { BBy - {B80)
EE-I:MQ of discount on prasent valus of . . 1280 . (e8n)
At 31 December 2020 (TE3) (2477} (1,867} (414} (5,521)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the
leans to cusiomers balance for Retail segment for 31 December 2021;

Retall loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  POCI Tatal
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2021 50,518 8,015 1,220 G657 B8.414
Movemends willh impact on cread foss alowance

charge for the period:

Miew assals originated or purchased 174,587 - - = 174,587
Derecognised during the pariod (5, 464) {7,342} (5383} (657) (103.045)
Transfes:

- to [etima (from Stage 1 to Stage 2) {1,250 1,250 P .

- to credit-impaired (from Slage 1 and Stage 2 o

Stage 3) {451) (240} &1 -

- to 12-months ECL (from Stage 2 and Stage 3 o

Stage 1) 487 (405) (82} =

- from Stage 3 to Stage 7 a (3) . o
Total movements with impact on credit loss

allowance charge for the period 78,909 (B,734) 23 [B57) 71,541
Movemants withow! impac! on crealf loss allowance

charge for the period:

Amounts writlan off - [(945) {945)
At 31 December 2021 138,427 1,285 298 140,010

4%
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Ratall loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 1 POLC| Tolal
ECL as at 1 January 2021 {271} {173} [534) [315) {1,283)
Movemenls wilh impact on cradi loss

allowance charge for he parod!

Mew assels orginated or purchasad (602) - = - (602}
Dsrescognised during the period LI a2 150 304 TG
Changes o ECL measuramien model

assumptions (357) {141) {210) (78] (TBT)
Trargiers:

- 1o lifetime {from Stage 1 to Stage 2) 33 {35} £ (2]
- o cradit-impaired {from Siage 1 and Slage 2

to Stagae 3) &0 05 {335) (32)
- o 12-months ECL {from Stage 2 and Stage

3 1o Stage 1) 2} D 20 47
- from Stage 3 1o Stage 2 - . 2 2
Total movements with impact on credit

ioss allowance charge for the period {6:59) 100 [364) 35 (&0aE)
Movemants withow! impact an credi foss

Amournlts written off - - B45 845
Unwinding of discount on present value of

ECLs - - [214) (214}
At 31 December 2021 {930) (73) (167) . {1.170)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening o the clesing balances of the

loans to custormers balance for Retail segment for December 2020:

Retall loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Smla 3 PO Tatal
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 300 69,617 5632 1319 To TT2TE
Mew assets onginated or purchased 52,684 - - 479 53183
Daracognisad during the period {(53.777) [5.291) {200 (285) (59.553)
Transfer to Stage 1 197 (1743 (23) % .
Transfer to Stage 2 {7,884) 7884 =
Transafer to Stage 3 1,39) 132) 1,351 - -
Armeoants writhen off - - (1,315) (245)  (1,580)
Lnwinding of descount on presant vales of ECLs 0 BA - &8
At 31 December 2020 50,518 20189 1,220 657 69,414
Retail loans Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 POCI _ Total
ECL as at 1 January 2020 (409) (25) (846} {217)  (1.497)
Mew financial assets oniginated or purchased (1) il ot T (286)
Changes to ECL measurament model
assumptions 285 {66 217 {343) 23
Transfer io Stage 1 8) 1 g . -
Transfer io Siage 2 ar {37) - - -
Transler o Stage 3 3 1 i4) - -
Movemeants withouwt impect on credit foss : 2 - = x
allowance changes for the period:

Write-offs . - 1.315 245 1,560
Recovares of assats pravicusly writhen -off - = (1,095) = (1,085

E.n:qt-:ming off disgount on present value of B (BB} - (B8}

A 31 December 2020 (271) (173 (534) (38 1.2493)
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MNotes o the Consoclidated Financial Stafements -31 December 2021
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17 Loans to Customers [Continwed)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening fo the closing batances of the
loans to customers balance for Morigage loans for 31 December 2021:

Mortgage loans Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 POCI Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2021 44922 2,250 2,386 2 4% 560
Movemanis with impact on cred ioss

allowance charge for the pariod:!

Mew assots ongingled or purchased 21,480 - - 21,480
Derecognisad during the pariod (5. 167) (8a3] [462) (2] {10,514}
Translers:

= b lifetire (from Stage 1 to Stage 2) {370 am -
- to creditimpaired (from Stage 1 and Siage 2

1o Stage 3) {176) (178} 355 #
= b 12-months ECL (from Siage 2 and Stage 3

io Staga 1) 1,538 {1,351} (187) ol
- from Stage 3 to Stage 2 524 (524) .
Total movements with impact on credit

loss allowance charge for the period 13,305 [1,518) {818) 2] 10,966
Mevemeniz without impact on credif loss

afiowance charge for the period:

Amounts writhen off - - 9G4} - {5 )
At 31 December 2021 58,227 T3 604 - 59,562
Mortgage loans Stage 1  Stage2  Stage3 POCI Total
ECL as at 1 January 2021 (175} [204) [T38) {1,118)
Mensemants with impact on credlf loss

afowance charge for M peviod:

Mew assats onginated or purchased {4 - = (24}
Derecognised duning the period i4 18 14 - Af
Changes to ECL measurament model

assumptions 115 27 [476) (334}
Transfars:

= b lifetirme (from S1age 1 to Stage 2] F (22} {20%
- to credit-impaired (From Stage 1 and Stage 2

1o Stage 3) 2 22 (38) {12)
= hg 12=months ECL (from Siage 2 and Siage

3 o Stage 1) (4} 124 24 144
- from Stape 3 o Stage 2 - (2} 85 64
Tatal movements with iImpact on credit

loss allowance charge for the period 105 187 {408} {135)
Movaments wathoul impact an eredf loss

Amounts writien off - " 964 - G4
Unwinding of discount on present value of - = (28] - {2B)
ECLs

At 31 Decembar 2021 {70} (A7) (211} " [318)
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the

loans to customers balance for Morlgage loans for 31 December 2020

Morgage

Gross carrying value as at 1 January 20290
Mew assais originaled or purchaged
Dergcognised duning the period

Transfar to Stage 1

Transler to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Armounts wiithen off

Unwinding of discount on present vakse of ECLS

At 31 December 2020

Mortgage loans

ECL as at 1 January 2020

Mirw financial assets odginated or purchasad
Changes to ECL measunirmen model
assumplions

Transfar 1o Stage 1

Transfer o Stage 2

Transfer 1o Stage 3

Mowvarmants withow! impact on cradit loss
alfowance charge for the pariod:

Write-ofts
Recoveries of assets praviously writhen -off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs

At 31 December 2020

Stage1 '3  Stage3 POCI Total
40,912 1,650 3478 3 48,043
11,073 . - . 11,073
(5.146) (530} (531) {11 (8.208)
BSE (783} {73) . .
{1,953) 1881 (28} - "
(820} (68) BEA .
. [1.411) {1.411)
- - (i) i3
44,922 2,250 2,386 2 49,560
Stage1 Staged Staged POCI _ Total
(1135) (T8)  (1.77E) (1 {1,870
{10} . {(10)
(22 1144} (192} 1 {357}
(4T) ar 10
13 {28) 15 -
6 7 (13}
. 1411 1.411
. {129} 129)
= L] (63}
{175) (204) {739) - [1,118)

Al



Bank Respublika OJ5C

Notes te the Consolldated Financlial Statemenis -31 December 2021
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17 Loans to Customers [Continued)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening 1o the closing balances of the
loans bo customers balance for Card loans for 31 Decembar 2021

Card loans

Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2021
Movemants with impact on credll lnss aliowance
charge for the period:

Mew assets omginaled or purchased
Derecognised duning the penod

Transfers:

- ta Iifetime {from Stage 1 o Siage 2)

- {r credil-impained (from Stage 1 and Stage 2 to
Stage 3)

- to 12-months ECL {from Stage 2 and Stage 3 to
Stage 1)

- from Sitage 3 to Stage 2

Total movements with impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the period

Movamants withow! impact on credif Ioss alowance
charge for the peniod:

Armounls written off

At 31 December 2021

Card loans

ECL as at 1 January 2021

Movements waith irmpacl on credil koss alowance
charge for the pevicd!

Mew assels onginaled or purchasad
Derecognised during the perad

Changes to ECL measurement modal assumptions
Trangbers:

- ta lifatime {from Stage 1 1o Stage 2)

- o credit-impaired {from Stage 1 and Siage 2 fo
Stage 3)

= 1o 12-months ECL {from Stage 2 and Stage 3 1o
Stage 1)

- frorm Stege 3 1o Stage 2

Total movements with impact on credit loss
allowance charge for the period

Movements withow impect on credil loss aflowance
charge for the pariod;

Armounls writhen off

Umeinding of discount on presant valwe of ECLs

At 31 December 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Toltal
1,054 281 288 1,581
3,880 - 3,898

(2. 962) (445} (63) [3.470)

(317} M7 : 2

(32) i2} 34
104 (60} (44} .
- 3 (3)

692 (187} (78 429

- - {10) (10}
1,746 T4 160 2,000
Stage1  Stage2 Stage3  Total
{44} (42) (148) (232)
(27} . - {27
19 20 34 T3

8 (2] (64) (74)

1 (18) . (17)

1 - (26) {25)

” 14 26 40

- a 3

{14} 14 (2T {27}

. ; 10 10

= s {10) {10}

(58) (28) (173) (2589)
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Nates to the Consolidated Financlal Statements -31 December 2021

{Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaifani Manals, unless otherwise stated)

17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following tables below show reconciliations from the opening lo the closing balances of the
loans o customers balance for Card loans for 31 December 2020:

Stage1  Stage2 Stage3 POCI Total

Card loans

Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2020 1,285 870 B9 - 2l
Mew ansels orginated or purchasad 767 . 7TER
ENRCoOrar OuTinG. Ik parid (965] (587) (48] - {1.600)
Transfer lo Stage 1 308 (275) (33)

Transfer o Stage 2 (187) 202 {s) _
Transfer bo Stage 3 (139) (49) 188 B

Amounts written of i - (2 (2}
Urnwinding of discount on presant value of ECLS ] - 77 77
Al 31 December 2020 1,054 264 266 - 1581
Card loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
ECL as at 1 January 2020 (51) {40 [26) (117}
Mew financial assets orginated or purchased (2] (20) (30) (T2
Changes o ECL measuremeant miodel

BEsUmMplicns 43 {3 177 T
Transhar 1o Stage 1 (1) 21 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 . (4) 7 p
Transfar to Stage 5 5 4 ) .
Aovemanis withou? impact on cread loss

afowance charge for lhe panod.

Write-ofs : . 2 2
Recovenes of assels pravioushy writhen -off E (185} (1B5)
Unwinding of discount on presant vabue of (17} m
ECLs = .

At 31 Decembser 2020 (4] (42) (148) (232)

** The loss allowance in these tables excludes ECL on loan commitments. becausa the Group can
separately identify the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial
ingtrument component.

L}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments -31 December 2021

(Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbajjani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

Credit quality analysis

The following table sets out information about the eredit quality of loans to customers measured at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2021 and as at 31 December 2020. Unless spacially indicated,
the amounts in the table represent gross carmying amounts.

Explanation of the terms: Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are included in Note 31 (a).

31 December 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Tatal
Loans to customers at amortised cost
= SME
Mol pagl due 285,681 17,343 6,849 308,873
Less than 30 days 7174 4,266 arr 12317
31 to 80 days - 851 485 1,436
%1 to 180 days - 4T 447
181 1o 360 days - 325 325
Oreer 360 days = - 24a7r 2877
Total 202 855 22,560 11,860 33T ATE
Loss allowancs {3, 788) (B43]) {6.055) - (10,686)
Carrying amount 289,067 21,717 5,805 - 316,689
31 December 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans to customars at amorlised cost

- SME

Mot past dug 201,048 5,682 16,584 11 223,205
Less than 30 days 5880 1,067 875 7 8829
H 1o 90 days = 1.811 [ - 1.886
91 1o 180 days - - 2,858 4 2862
181 to 360 days = 2,700 1 270
Civer 360 days - - 1,354 . 1,354
Total 207,928 B, 480 24 426 23 240,837
Loss allowance {2 961) (659) 9,299) {11} (12,830)
Carrying amount 204 967 7801 15127 12 237 907

31 December 2031
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans to customers at amoriised cost

— Micro

Mot past dua 149,355 55, 580 547 205,482
Lesas than 30 days 225 62 5 282
3 te 90 days . 105 38 143
91 to 180 days - - 320 320
181 1o 360 days - - aar 387
Orer 360 days - - 338 338
Total 148,580 55,747 1,635 206,982
Loss allowance (1,701} 13486) {1,109) {8.206)
Carrying amount 147 879 50,261 526 198,666
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(Amounts are presenled in thouzands of Azerbaliani Manals, unless otherwize slaled)

17 Loans to Customers {Continued)

31 Decermnber 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Laans to cusiomears af amortised cost
= Micro
Mt pasi due 73803 22,882 1,507 137 98,420
Less than 30 days 556 253 139 105 1,053
31 to 90 days = Q56 152 101 1.208
81 to 180 days - 538 238 T
161 to 360 days - BAS a2 oET
Orvnr 360 days = - M = L |
Total Td, 355 24 181 3z G4 102,526
Loss allowance (7E3) (2.477) {1,867} (414) |:5,521;|_
Carrying amount 73,596 21,714 1,445 250 87,005

31 December 2021

E‘Iih!l 1 E‘IIE F] EIIF 3 POCI Total
Loans to cusiomers at amortised cost
— Ratall
Mot past dus 136,067 684 123 - 136,854
Less than 30 days 2,360 30 < - 2,666
31 to 80 days - 3 2 - i
21 o 180 days . . a5 . a5
181 to 360 days - - fi - 6
Orvier 360 days - - a7 . i)
Total 138,427 1,285 298 = 140,010
Loss allowance {530 (73 __ﬂ_&ﬂ_ = (1,170
Carrying amount 137,497 1,212 131 = 138,840

31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans to custormers at amortised cost
= Ratail
Mot past dus &Y 257 6,970 P L 230 &4, T26
Liess than 30 days 2,261 176 56 100 2,583
31 1o 90 days 473 34 140 1.047
91 1o 180 days - 406 186 Az
181 to 380 days = 100 1 101
Cher 360 days - = 355 . 355
Total 59,518 8,019 1,220 657 69414
Loss alloswants (271) (173 (534) (315} (1,283)
Carrying amaunt 59,247 7,848 686 342 68,121
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17 Loans to Customers {Continwed)

31 Dacamber 2021

__Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans to customers at amortisad cost

= Morigage

Mot past due 5781 ETh 34 . 58.216

Lessa than 30 days 416 138 g - S8

31 1o 50 davs . 222 32 - 254

81 %o 180 days - - aa - L]

1681 to 360 days - . 64 - G4

Over 360 days - are - are

Tatal 58,227 731 604 - m.m_

Loss allowance (70} {37} {210} {318)

Carrying amount 58,157 694 383 50,244

31 December 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCH Total
Loans o cusiomers at amortised cost
= Margage
Mot past dua 44 54z 1,382 171 z 46,107
Less than 30 deys 380 305 - - GALD
31 1o 8D days - 549 = = 549
91 to 180 days - - 5@ - 531
181 1o 380 days - - st rd - 202
Chopr 360 days - . 1,352 - 1,332
Tatal 44,922 2,250 2,386 2 449 580
Loss alowancs (175) (204} (7T39) - {1,118}
Carrying amount 44,747 2,046 1,647 2 48 442
3 December 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total

Loans to customers at amortised cost
—Card
Mot past dua 1.676 1] 4 = 1,742
Less than 30 days [ ) 2 N 77
31 to BD days - 4 ) i3
1 1o 180 days = = 4 £ 4
181 o 360 days = 10 - 10
Owver 360 days - - 161 - 161
Tolal 1,746 T4 i 1..59“ - 2,000
Loss aliowance (58] (28) {173} - (259]
Carrying amount 1,688 46 7 - 1,741

i
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

31 Decamber 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
Loans to custoers at amortised cost h
- Cards
Mot past due 57 &7 - - 1,044
Loss than 30 days a7 -] - - 152
3 1o 80 days - 119 - - 118
91 1o 180 days - - 49 . 449
181 lo J60 days = - 135 - 135
Ower 360 days - - B2 - B2
Total 1,054 281 266 - 1,581
Lo=s allvwance (44) (42) (146} . [232)
Carrying amount 1,010 219 120 - 1,348
Sensitivity

31 December 2021

LGD increase. 10 percentage poinis increase in LGD estimates would result in &n increase in total
expecied credit loss allowances of AZN 5,299 thousand at 31 December 20:21.

A 10 percentage points increase in LGD estimates for the SME segrment would result in an increase
in total expected credit loss allowances of AZN 2,414 thousand at 31 December 2021. A 10
percentage points increase in LGD estimates for the Micro segment would result in an increase in
total expected credit loss allowances of AZN 2,088 thousand at 31 December 2021. A 10
percantage points increase in LGD estimates for the Retail segment would result in an increase in
total expected credit loss allowances of AZN 601 thousand at 31 December 2021. A 10 percentage
paints increase in LGD estimates for the Mortgage segment would result in an increase in fotal
expected credit loss allowances of AZN 150 thousand at 31 December 2021, A 10 percentage
points increase in LGD estimates for the Cards segment would result in an increase in total expecied
credit loss allowances of AZN 46 thousand at 31 December 2021,

Should ECL on all loans and advances to customers be measured at lifetime ECL {that is, including
those that are currently in stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL) , the expected credit loss allowance
would be higher by AZN 2,503 thousand as of 31 December 2021,

Should ECL on all loans and advances to customers be measured at lifetime ECL (that s, including
those that are currently in stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL) for the SME sagmenl, the expecled
credit loss allowance would be higher by AZN 1,127 thousand as of 31 December 2021. Should
ECL on all loans and advances to customers be measured at [ifetime ECL (that is, including those
that are currently in stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL) for the Micro segment, the expected
credit loss allowance would be higher by AZN 450 thousand as of 31 December 2021. Should ECL
on all loans and advances 1o customers be measured at lifetime ECL {thal is, including those that
are currently in stage 1 measured al 12-months ECL) for the Retail segment, the expected credit
loss allowance would be higher by AZN 350 thousand as of 31 December 2021. Should ECL on all
loans and advances to customers be measured at lifetime ECL (that is, including those that are
currently in stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL) for the Morigage segment, the expected cradit
logs allowance would be higher by AZN 538 thousand as of 31 Decembaer 2021, Should ECL on all
leans and advances o customens ba measured al lifetime ECL (ihat is, including those that ars
currently in stage 1 measured at 12-months ECL) for the Cards segmenl, the expected credit loss
allowance would be higher by AZMN 20 thousand as of 31 December 2021.

31 December 2020

Changes in estimates could affect the amount of expecied credit losses. For example, to the extent
that the nat present value of the estimated cash flows differs by plus or minus one percent, the loss
allowance on loans lo customers as al 31 December 2020 would be AZN 4,428 thousand
lawerhigher,

T3
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17 Loans to Customers (Continwed)
Collaleral held and other credif enhancemants

The disclosure below represents the lower of the camying valuee of the loan orfair value of
collateral taken; the remaining par s dsclosed within the “unsecured exposures”. The camying value of
boans was allocated based on camying amount of the assets taken as collateral.

The Group oblains collateral valuation at the time of granting loans and updates it when a new loan
is obiained for thal collaleral after six monihs depending on the significance of the loan exposuwre,

Descrption of collateral hald for loans carmied at amorised cost is as follows at 31 December 2021:

SME Micro Retail Mortgage  Card Total
_ lans  loans _ loans loans _ loans
Loans cofataralised by
- real esiate 190 225 63,034 4834 58,543 T Tz
- cash and daposils 22178 1,084 4,010 - 178 27453
= government fund ; g
Bos 53256 1,881 301 55.530
- mobor vahicles 3187 18,118 413 - - 21119
= gl 4 58924 35,094 . - 41,072
Total 268,898 90,146 44,451 59,244 285 462,504
Soft collaterals 22 853 63,885 385 - - ar.123
Unsecured exposnss -
{exciuding soft) 24908 44 B35 Ba, 004 1486 165,063
Total camying valua
loans to customers at 316,689 198,666 138,840 50,244 1,744 T15,180
AL

Description of collateral held for loans carmied at amortised cost is as follows at 31 December

2020:
SME Micra Retail Maorigage Card Total
leans loans leans lpans loans
Loans collaterasad by:
- real estale 126,060 18,352 4,103 48,082 - 186,597
- cash and deposils 16,412 258 #8878 . 81 25,629
- govemmant fund _
uaraniees . ! = £ ok
= frator vehickes 4,194 1,867 448 - = &,609
« gold - G55 21,866 . « 225N
Total 146,666 21,232 35,285 48,082 B 251,354
Unsecured exposunes and
solf collateral B1,241 T Fr3 32 826 360 1268 191,468
Tota carying value loans

to customaers at AG 227 807 aT.008 68,121 48,442 1,349 442824

SH
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17 Loans to Customers (Continued)

The following table sets out information on loans o customers that are credit-mpaired and related
collateral held in order 10 mitigate potential losses as at 31 December 2021

SME Micro Retail Mortgage Card Total
loans loans loans loans loans

Loans collateratsed by

- raal estale 3247 L 85 05 2 4,225
- eash Bnd dapasils a3 - - - - 83
- government fund i = - 2

guaranieas

- mator wehiclas 138 - 9 - - 147
= paked - 30 26 - - 66
Toftal darve 526 130 385 2 4501
Soft collaterals 1,035 - . - - 1035
Unsacured exposuras % : :
{excluding soi) 1,392 5 1,307
Total canying value lodans

to cusiomers at AG 5,905 526 130 305 T 6,063

The following table sats out information on loans to customers that are credit-impaired and related
collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses as at 31 December 2020:

EME Micro Retail Mortgage Card Total
loans loans loans loans Icans
Loans collpleralisged by
- real mstata 11,512 BT 184 1631 - 14014
- cash and depaosits 1,655 = - - - 1,655
= mahor wihicles 43 52 28 - . 123
- gold . 11 200 - . 211
Total 13,210 754 412 1,631 - 16,003
Unsecured exposuras 1,929 945 G16 18 120 3628
Total carrying value loans
to customers at AC 15,138 1,695 1,028 1,648 120 19,631
Repossessed collateral

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group obtalned certain assets by laking possession
of collateral for loans to customers with a net carrying amount of AZN 681 thousand (2020: 1,972
thousand). As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the repossessed collateral comprises real estate at
amounts of AZM 4,763 thousand and AZM 4 800 thousand respeclively. See Note 23,
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17 Loans to Customers [(Continued)

Significant credit exposures

As at 31 Decembar 2021, the Group had 52 borrowars (31 December 2020: 47) with gross loan
balances exceeding AZN 1,000 thousand, The tolal gross value of these loans as al 31 December
2021 was AZN 127,328 thousand or 17 % of the fotal loans to customers (31 December 2020: AZN
099,246 thousand or 21%).

Loan maturities

The maturity of the loan portiglio is presented in Mote 31(b) which shows the remaining period from
this raparting date to the contractual maturity of the loans.

Key assumptions and judgments for estimating the loan impairment

Az at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group estimated ECL for significant loans in Stage 3 based
on an individual review of each loan and estimation of ils future cash flows, This estimate of fulure
cash flows is dependent on faclors such as the estimated valua of underlying collateral and delay
af 12 to 48 months in oblaining proceeds from the foreclosure of collateral. The Group then
calculales the net present value of these cash flows using a discount rate which equates o the
original effective interest rate of the loan, in order to determine the required amount of ECL.

Far the remaining portfolio of leans the Group calculates ECL on a collective basis. The key areas
of uncertainfy and assumpticns used in the calculation of collective impairment are:

= Due to macro data availabilty and portfolio dala adequacy data starling from 31 January
202 was considerad as valid;

- Only first default for each exposure was considered as valid (L.e. remaining data after default
endry was cut off);

- All facilittes which are in defaull ai their first observation date were excluded from the
sample;

- For each loan segment there was a cut-off on MOBs (monihs on book) where number of
unique faclities was smaller than 100 = i.e. baseline hazard estimates obtained for MOBs greater
than this cut-0ff point were considerad as highly biased;

- Loss Given Default was estimated based on eight year's cash flow.

18 Investment Securities

2021 2020
}nmmntm debl securites a1 AC 37,102 35,444
m&mﬂm al FYC! - gquity 1.088 1,088
Investment securities, gross 38,1590 36,532
Loss allowance (298] (281}
Total investment securities - P 36,241

The table below discloses investments in debl securities at 31 December 2021 by measurement
categories and classes:
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18 Investment Securities (Continued)

Investmant in Total

diehl gecurities

atAC
Govermnmend bonds 2,328 2328
Corporate bonds 4,774 4,774
Total investments in debt securities at 31 December 2021 {fair 37.102

value or gross carmying value) 27,102 :

Credit loss alowancs (298} {208]
Total Investments in debt securities al 31 Decembar 2021 16,804 36,804

(carrying value)

The table balow discloses investments in debl securities at 31 December 2020 by measurement
categories and classes:

Investment in Total

debt securities

a1 AC
Gongmimienl bonds = o
Corporala bonds 35444 a5 444

Tatal Investments in debt securities at 31 December 2020 (falr

walue or gross carrying valua) A5, 444 35444
Credit loss allowanc (201) (291}
I:ll:l']llnvnuﬂunuin debt securities at 31 December 2020 [carrying 35,153 18,153

The carrying amount of investment in debl securities al AC al 31 December 2021 below also represents
the Group’ maximum exposure o credit risk on these assels:

Stage 1
{12-months ECL)
Government bonds
= Good 2,328
Corporate bonds
- Good 34,774
Gross carrylng amount T 102
Cradil lnsa alicwance (298)
Carrying amount 36,004

L]
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18 Investment Securities (Continued)

The carmying amount of investmeant in debl securities at AC ai 31 December 3020 below alao represents the Group”
maximum exposure to credil risk on (hass agels!

Stage 1
[(12-manths EGL)

Corporate bonds
- Good 35,444
Gross carrying amount 35444
Credit koss allowance (291)
Carrying amount 35153

Investment securities designated at FVOCI - equity instruments

Investment securities designated al FVOCI consist of equity invesiments expected to be held for the
long-term for siralegic purposes, During 2021 dividend received from *Azerbagan Credit Bureau LLC in
the amount of AZN 113 thousand. Refer to Note 3.

Owenership, % 2021 Ownership: 2020

Miili Kart LLG 10.00% 500 10.00% 500

Agrar Insurance Joint Insurance Company 313 313
CUSC 14.75% 14.29%

Azerbrjen Crodl Bureau LLC 12.50% 250 12.50% 250

SWIFT - 25 - o

1.0B8 1,088

19 Derivative financial Instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial insiruments, recorded as assels or
liabilities, together with their notional ameunts. The notional amount, recorded gross, ks the amount
of a derivative’s underlying asset or liability and is a basis upon which changes in the value of
derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicale the volume of fransactions oulstanding at
the year end and are nol indicative of credil risk.

Notional 31 December 2021 MNotional 31 December 2020

e e N Y

amount Fairvalue  amount Fair valus
Assots Liabilities Assets Liabliitles
Swaps ~ domastic 30,000 1,231 - TO,000 683 (112)
Swaps - foreign 34000 730 (484) 34000 1540  (201)
Farward 8,166 - (673) 6,166 135 =
Total derivative financial
instrumants 120,186 1,861 {1,157} 110,188 2377 {31],

Respective changes in the fair value were as follows and presented within the ‘Gains less losses
from financial derivalives' ling itlem in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:

2021 2020
Interest payments on dervative financial instruments {7,985) {7.352)
Falr value {logs) / gain from defvative financial instruments (1.260) 3374
Losses less paing from financial derivatives (8.245) (3,978
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Bank Respublika OJ5C
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
{Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbajani Manals, unless otherwise slaled)

20 Property and Equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, included in property and equipment wene fully depreciated
assets of AZN 9,778 thousand and AZN 9,551 thousand, respeciively,

Buildings owned by the Group are camied at revalued amounts based on the independent
appraiser's report. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying value of these buildings
approximate their fair values. If the buildings were accounted at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, its carrying value would be AZN 18 548 thousand as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020; AZN 17,073 thousand).

The basis used for the appraisal is the markel approach. The market approach is based on an
analysis of tha results of comparable sales of similar buildings. The key assumplion used in applying
thie market approach is the selling price, in the absence of undue stress and if reasonable time is
given,

In respect of right of use assels disclosed in 1able above, the Group recognised lease liabilies as
Talbows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Short-term lease liabilies (854} (738)

Long-tarm leass labddies [2.441) (1,762)

Total lease liabilities (3,205) (2,501)
Sensitivity

Useful lives are accounting estimates and 10% increase/decrease in useful lives would result in
increasa by 219 060 AZN and decrease by 180,585 AZN, respectively.

Detalls of the Group's buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
AZN'00D Leval 3 Fair value Level 3 Falr value
Buildings T 26047 26,047 24,706 24706
Total 26,047 26,047 24,708 24,706




Bank Respublika OJ5C
Notes o the Consclidated Financial Statements -31 Decembar 2021

(Amourils are presented in thousands of Azerbaian Manals, unless otherwisse staled)

21 Other Assets

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Setiemants on money transfers 6,733 3432
Recehablos from the governmant GER 20582
Recetvables on plastic card operations GBO 2,044
Recenvables arisng out of insurance operations 575 B35
Daposils at Compulsory Insurance Bureau - 400
Cihar 105 309
Total other financial assels 8,581 BA72
Prapayrments for propery, equipment and intangible assats 641 1,880
Cithar prepaymmaents 2223 1,114
Prepaid taxes 178 222
Investmient property 120 120
Impairmant allowanca [24] [274)
Cilinar 1,773 ara
Total other non-financial assets l-.?_!__‘l_'_ 1435
Total other assets 13,582 12,307

included in other assets as at 31 December 2021 AZN 588 thousand and 31 December 2020 AZN
2,052 thousand represents compensations receivable from the government for impairment losses
on loans denominated in foreign currency resulted from devaluation of the national currency in
2015. Compensations were made to customers in advance by the Group on behall of the
government based on the decree of the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan signed on 28
February 2019 “On the additional measures related to the solution of problem loans of individuals

in the Republic of Azerbaijan.
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Bank Respublika OJSC
Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
{Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbajfani Manats, uniess otherwise staled)

22 Amounts Due to Credit Institutions

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Cunmenl accounts 1052 BOB
Term deposits : 128 210
- 1,180 1,018

23 Repossessed Collateral

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, Repossessed Collateral in the amount of AZN 4,763 thousand
and AZM 4,800 thousand is represented by AFN 3,802 thousand and AZN 2,961 thousand of real
estale (apariments, land and non-living area), respectively, which the Group took possession of,
ard is available for sale. As of 31 December 2021 the fair value of this properly exceeds its carrying
value by AZN 1461 thousand (31 December 2020 by AZN 1081 thousand).

24 Current accounts and deposits from customers

31 Decermber 3 December
2021 2020

Current accounts and demand deposits
- Ratad 107 585 102,443
- Corporate 317, a2 260,031

Term deposits

- Ratai 302,845 211455
- Corporate b4 848 102 500
822,850 706,519

Current accounts and deposits of entrepreneurs held with the Group are included in Corporate
segment line in the table above.

Az at 31 December 2021, the Group has 3 customers (2020: 4 customers), whose balances exceed
10% of equity. These balances as at 31 December 2021 are AZN 258,233 thousand (2020: AZN
282,152 thousand).




Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments 31 December 2021
{Amaunis are presenled in thousands of Azerbaiani Manals, uness otherwize sialed)

25 Subordinated Borrowings

Currency Placemant 2021 ] 2020 n

paricd neminal  December nominal December
interest 2021 Interast 2020
Subordinated bormowings from
foreign credit institutions - thind T.57%-
parties USD 10 years T.5% 20,648 T.5% 18,508
Total subordinated
borrowings 20,648 19,508

In the event of bankrupicy or liguidation of the Group, repayment of this debl is subordinate io the
repayments of the Group's liabilities to all other crediars.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activilies:

Subordinated
barrowings
Balance at 1 January 2020 10,528
intarest expense 1,688
imeras! paid [ 1.0
Balance at 1 January 2021 18,508
Proceasds from subondinated bomowings, principal T.008
Repayments of subsrdinaled borrawings, principal {5,770}
Inlerest axpans.a 1,492
Interes] pakd {1,592)
Balance at 31 December 2021 T 20,546
26 Other Borrowed Funds
31 Decemisar 3 Decermber
2021 2020
Loans from local credit instiutions:
Entrepreneurship Devaloprment Fund of the Republic of Arerbaijan 57193 46 201
The Mortgage and Credit Guaraniase Fund of the Republic of 56,870 44,151
Agarbaijan
Agrarian Credil and Development Agency 12,568 12,965
Thie Central Bank of the Republic of Azertasan 2,172 11,685
Total icans from local credit institutions 135,803 115,012
Leans from foreign credit Institutions:
Ewropean Bank for Reconsiruction and Development 18,727 10,364
FMO 15,954 8,183
Frontera Capital BV - 2134
Total loans from foreign credit institutions 38,721 o 20,681
Total loans recaived from local and foreign credit institutions 174,524 135,703

Enirepreneurship Development Fund of the Republic of Azerbaian. Under this program, funds
made available to the Group al an interest rate of 1% p.a. and the Group further on lends these
funds to eligible borrowers al rates nol higher than 6% p.a. These loans have malurity periods up

to 10 years,
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26 Other Borrowed Funds (Continued)

Mortgage and Credit Guarantee Fund of the Republic of Azerbaijan. Unders this program, funds
made available o the Group at inlerest rates of 1-4% p.a. and the Group further on lends these
funds to eligible borrowers at rates not higher than 8% p.a. These loans have maturity periods from
3 1o 30 years.

Agrarian Credit and Development Agency under the Ministry of Agriculture. Under this program,
funds made avaitable to the Group at an interesi rate of 2% p.a. and the Group further on lends
these funds to eligibbe bormowers at rates nat higher than 75 p.a. The loans are repayable within 3
years from issue date.

The Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbajan. During 2020 and 2019, the CBAR isued loans to
the Group in the amouni of AZN 2,699 theusand and 10,674 thousand respectively wilth annual
interest rate of 0.1% for restructuring problem loans based on the decree "On the addiional
measwres relaled 1o the solution of problem lpans of individuals in the Republic of Azerbaijan™
signed by the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan. These loans were recorded at fair value on
initial recognition, See Mote 9. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 amortized carrying
amount of these loans was AZN 9,172 and AZM 11,695 thousand respectively,

In estimating the discount rates for term borrowings from Mational Fund for Entreprenawrship
Support of Azerbaijan Republic, Azerbaijan Morigage and Credit Guarantee Fund and Agrarian
Credit and Development Agency under the Ministry of Agriculture the Group considers this market
as a separate market from other commercial borrowing business as these loans are issued to the
whole banking sector of Azerbaijan at the same terms, purposes, conditions and credi risk
BXDOSUMEE.,

included in loans received from foreign credit institutions are USD denominated loans from the third
party foreign credil institutions. These loans have original maturity periods from 12 monihs fo 3
years, (31 December 2020: original maturity pericds from 12 months to 3 years). Interest rates on
these loans are fixed and range from 8.35% to 10.85% a5 at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: fixed and range from 8,35% lo 12%%).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, loans received from local and foreign credit institutions did not
include loans from related party foreign credit institutions.

The Group is obligated to comply with financial covenants in relation to loans received from fareign
credit instifutions. These covenants include dabt to equily ratios and various other financkal
performance ratics. The Group’s compliance with these financial covenants is disclosed in Note 34.

Reconciliation of movements of liablities o cash flows arising from financing aclivities:

Other borrowed funds
EBalance at 1 January 2020 120,024
Financing cash fiows;
Proceeds from other borrowed funds, principal 9,447
Ropaymants of other borrowed funds, principal (23.645)
Interest axpense 5,303
Irberesl paid {5.426)
Balance at 1 January 2021 135,703
Financing cash flows:
Procaeds from olher borrowed funds, principal 88,051
Repaymants of other borrowed funds, principal (47 ,8906)
Interes! axpense 5,513
Interest paid {6, B4

Balance at 31 December 2021 174,524

it
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27 Bonds Issued

Im December 2021 the Group issued AZN denominated interest-bearing bonds listed on Baku Stock
Exchange with maturity date on 15 December 2023. The issuance was conducted
through public placement and fully purchased by different investors. Mumber of bonds are 10,000.
Mominal rale is AZN 1,000, Coupon rate is B.5%, payable semi-annually.

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bonds issued on domastic markat 10,038 -
Total debt securities in issue 10,038 -
28 Other liabllities
31 December 31 December
20 2024
Settlements on money transfers and plastic cand operations 5814 ; 1,208
ltems In courss of setthement 1.3 1,996
Payables arging oul of insurance operations 210 164
Insurance loss provision 349 154
Professional fees payable 607 105
Other i B47
Total other financial Habilities 8,885 4472
Salary and Other Payables to Employess 6,025 4024
Provigion for uneamed premium 2,304 a1
Payablg 1o the Deposil Insurance Fund a0 388
Ciihar non-financial labiities 225 15
Total other non-financlal Habilities 8,204 5336
Total other liabilities 18,1689 8,798

29 Share Capital

As at 31 December 2027 and 2020 authorized share capital consisted of ordinary shares, with par
value of AZN 2,45 each. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled {o receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are enfitied to one wole per share al annual and general meetings of the

Group,

The Group did not declare dividends on ordinary shares during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020,
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30 Segmaent Analysis

Operating segmenis are companents that engage in busingss aclivities thal may eam revenues or
incur expenses, whose operaling resulls are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (CODM), and for which discrete financial information is available. The CODM is the person
— or group of persons — who allocates resources and assesses the performance for the entity. The
functions of the CODM are performed by the Board of Directors (management board) of the Group.

{a) Description of products and services from which each reportable segment derives

s revenue

The Group is organised on the basis of four main business segments:

™ Corporate banking — loan and other credit facilties, current accounts, deposits,
dealing operations and other banking producis with entrepreneurs {legal enfities and

individual enfreprensurs),

. Retail banking —customer current accounts, savings, deposits, credil and debit

cards, consumer loans and morigages and other banking services with individuals,

. Treasury — interbank lending and borrowings, securities trading, foreign exchange
services and other ireasury functions

] Insurance

k) information about reportable segment profit or loss

Corporate Retail
31 December 2027 banking banking Treasury |Insurance Total
Exfavral revinues:
Inlenas] mooms 62,955 27,829 2 B8 735 B4, 387
Fee and commigsion meoms 2614 B522 . 11,136
Infernal reveanuas:
Funds trangher pricing 4,040 8873 (1333) .
Total revenues E9,609 45 T34 (11,045) T35 105,523
Intbenest expense (22,819) (B.405) 40 (30,084
Fee and commission axpenss (2,642) (7,744) (101} (454} (10.8241)
Operating expenses (32.287)  (19.750) (265) (3.332)  (55.604)
Mat gain on foreign exchange operations 3,870 2075 (542} 1 5,404
Gaing bess losses from financial dervatives [4,638) (4.600) - - (9.245)
Meat pramiums writhen - - 4,508 4,508
Claims paid, gross - - 1338 1,338
Claims cadad on reinswrance (80} {E0)
Ciihar incomsad| axpensa) = - 184 (1.133) (945)
Rirgerves 3,572 1.165 7 {8) 4,736
Met segment result 14,887 8856  (11.718) (961} 11,184
Net segment result 11,164
Inlaras] expense (3082)
Operating expenses {561)
Income tax charge (1,953)
Profit for the year 5,058
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30 Segment Analysis (Continued)

fc) Information about reportable segment assets/labilities

Segment assels are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assels are
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset. Loans to
corparate clients and entrepreneurs are included in Corporate segment column.

Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in he financial staterments. These labilities
are allocaled based on the operations of the segment,

The Group's investments in debt and equity securities, bofrowings and derivative financial
instruments are managéed by the treasury function.

Corporate Ratall

31 December 2021 Segment asasls banking banking Treasury Ingurance
Ciash and cash eguivalants 326 - - < 326
Loans to banks 32,480 - . 28,107 4373
Laans ko customars 715,180 515,355 188,825 . -
Investment sacurtias 37,8492 - . 36,578 1.314
Dierivative financial assats 1,961 - - 1,961 -
Oiher assils 1,961 - - - 1.961
Total segment assets TES, 800 11.243
Cash and cash aquivalenis ZBTATE

Property and equipment 43,153

Inangible assats 1,967

Deferred tax assets 2,052

Other assats 11,631

Repossessed collataral 4 T63

Goodwill 467

Assels held for sale 20

Total assets as per

consolidated financial

statements 1,141,089

T



Bank Respublika OJSC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaiani Manals, unless ctherwises slated)

Total liabilities a8 per consolidated
financial stalements

1,052,864

30 Segment Analysis [Continued)
Segmant mﬁm Treasury  Insurance

31 December 2021 liabliities banking
Current accounts and deposits from
CUSIMIErs: 8227850 412 640 410,210 - .
Cithar bomowed funds 174 524 - 174,524 -
Leasa liabilitins 157 - 157
Derivative financial Eabsiies 1,157 1,157 -
Ciihar liabilities 3,029 - - 3,029
Bonds issued 10,038 - 10,038 -
Subordinaied bofrowings 20,646 20,646
Total segment labilities 1,032.401 3. 1B8
Amounts due bo credst instifulions 1,180
Leasa liabilities J1%8
Ciher liabilties 15,160

_Current incomea tax liability BES

4
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3 Risk Management Policies

Management of risk is fundamental to the Group’s banking business and is an essential slement of
the Group's operations. The main risks inherent o the Group’s operations are those related to:

»  Credit risk;
+  Liguidity risk;
«  Market risk.

The Group recognises thal it is essential 1o have efficient and affective sk management processes
in place. To enable this, the Group has established a risk management framework, whose main
purposa is to protect the Group from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives.

Through the risk management framewaork, the Group manages the following risks;

{n) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credil risk which is the risk thal one party 1o a financial instrument will Tl
io discharge an obligalion and cause the other party to incur a financikal loss.

Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority. These processes are
performed by the Credit Committees and the Group’s Management Board,

Before any application is made by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes
(borrower's limits approved, or amendmenis made o lcan agreements, etc.) are reviewed and
approved by the branch risk-ranager or the Risk Management Depariment. Daily risk management
is performed by the Head of Credit Departments and Branch Credit Divisions.

T3
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31 Risk Management Policies (Continued)

The Group structures the level of credit nisk i underiakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepied in relation o one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to indusiry segments. Limits on
the level of credit risk by a borrower and a product (by industry secier) are approved guarterly by
the Management Baard. The exposure 1o any one borrower ncluding banks and brokers is further
restricted by sub-limits covering on and off-balance sheet exposures which are set by the Credit
Committea. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Where appropriate, and in the case of mosi loans, the Group obtains collateral and corporate and
personal guarantees. Certain portion of loans is personal lending, where no such facilities can be
obtained, Such risks are menitored on a continuous basis and subject o annual or more frequent
FeviEws.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. The credit risk on off-balance sheel financial instruments iz defined as a
probability of losses due io the inability of counterparty to comply wilh the contraciual terms and
conditions. With regpect 1o credit risk on commilments to extend credil, the Group is potentially
exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitmenis. However, the likely amount
of the loss is less than the tolal unused commitments since most commiiments 1o extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group applies the same
credit policy to the credit-related commilments as it does to the consolidated statement of financial
position financial instruments, i.e. the one based on the procedures for approving the granting of
loans, using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring. The Group meniors the term o
maturity of off balance sheet commiiments because long-term commitments generally have a
greater degree of credil risk than shor-lerm commitments.

Maximum exposure to credil risk

The Group's maximum exposure lo credil risk varies significantly and is dependent on both
individual risks and general market economy risks.

The following table presents the maximurm exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance
sheat commitments. For financial assats in the consolidaled stalement of financial position, the
maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of those assets,

The Group's maximum exposure io credit nsk under credit-related commitments 1o extend credit,
in the event of non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral or security
prove valueless, is represented by the confractual amounts of those instruments.,

31 December 31 December

20 2020
Cash eguivalents 238,101 328,037
Loans o banks 32 480 28,082
Lodns lo cusbomans 715,180 442 824
Investmen] sacurntias 36,804 35,153
Darivative financial assats 1,961 2307
Other financial assels B.681 B.AT2
Commitments on koans and unusad credit lines 15,0468 20,108
Guaraniess ssued and simiar commitments 20,2048 16,104
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# Risk Management Policies (Continued)

Geographical concentration

The Risk Managemeant Committee exercises control over the risk in the legisiation and regulatory
area and assesses its influence on the Group's activity, This approach aliows the Growp 10 minimize
potential losses from the investment climate fluctuations in the Republic of Azerbaijan.

The geographical concentration of assats and liabilities is set oul below:

The Republic QECD Other Totel
of Azerbaijan countrics nan-0ECD
couniries
H December 2021
Non-derivative financial assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents 284 033 3,160 309 287 502
Loans o banks 18,914 13,566 - 32 480
Lxans to customans 715,180 . - F15.180
Invesiment securilies ar Bev 25 - 47,892
(Ciher financial assels 8,681 - - 8,681
Total non-derivative financial assets 1,084 BT5 16,751 o8 1,081,735
Non-derivative financial labilities:
Amounts due o cradit Institulions 1,180 - - 1.180
Cumen sccouns and deposis from 790,507 4516
i e 18,827 822 B&0
Izgued bonds 10,038 = . 10,038
Subordinated borrowings - 20848 - 20,646
(Oher borrowad funds 135,803 18,727 19,904 174,524
Leass labilites 3,205 - - 3,295
Crher findncial Rabilities 8,895 - - 8_gas
Total non-derivative financial
tHabillites 958,718 43,880 38,821 1,044,428
Met position 105,957 (27,138) (38.512)
The Republic QECD CHfver Taotal
of Azerbaljan couniries non-0ECD
couniries
31 December 2020
Men-derivative financial assets:
Cash and cash eguivalants a0 407 2,508 53y 383,632
Loans to banks 16,250 11,867 165 28,082
LG 10 cusiomers 442 824 = = 447 524
Ineestment securities 36,218 25 - 36,241
Cither financial assels 8,726 146 - 8872
Total non-derlvative financlal assets BE4 513 14,436 702 899,651
MNon-derivative financial llabllities:
Amounts dus 1o chedi inslifulions 1,018 - - 1,018
Cumant acoounls snd deposils rom B85350 3,500 17,579 706,510
cuslomers
Subordinaled bormowings - 19,508 . 19,508
Othr bornganed funds 115,12 10,364 10,327 135,703
Leasa lizb#ities 2,501 - - 2,501
COither financiad liabllities 42T 201 = 4472
Total non-derivative financlal
liabilities BOB,152 33,663 27,906 889,721

Net position 76,361 {19,227 (27,204)

]
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31 Risk Management Policies {Continuwed)

Credif guality by class of financial asset

External ratings. Exiernal ratings are assigned fo counterpariies by independent internaticnal
rating agencies, such as S&P, Moody's and Fitch, These ralings are publicly available.

Master scale credit risk grade Cormesponding ratings of external Comesponding PD Intenval
international rating agencies (Moody“s)

Excallant Aaa to Bad 0.01% - 0,5%

Good BaZ to B1 0,51% - 3%

Satislactory B2, B3 3% - 10%

Special monitoring Caal+ o Ca 10% - 80.9%

Default C 100%

Each master scale credit risk grade is assigned a specific degree of creditworthiness:

« Excaflent — strong credit quality with low expected credit fisk,

»  Good - adequale credit quality with a moderate credit risk;

»  Satisfactory — moderate credit quality with a satisfactory credit risk;

« Special monitoring = facilities thal require closer monitoring and remedial management;
and

e [Defaull - facilities in which a default has ooourrad.

Such ralings and the corresponding range of PD are applied for the financial instrument indicated
inn {able below. Credil quality disclosure for each class of these financial assets for 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 iz disclosed im each relevant note for the following lines:

Financial statement Hne ltem HMotes
Cash and cash equivalents {(excluding cash on hand) 15
Laans o banks 16
Loans bo customers 7
Investmeant securitias 18
Oither financlal assels 21

Credit risk - Amounts arising from ECL

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
See accounting policy in Note 3{f){iv).

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significanthy
since initial recognition, the Group considers reascnable and supportable information thal is
relevart and available without undua cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and expert credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is o identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred for an exposure by comparing:

¢ the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
= the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimaled at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for chamges in prepayment
expeciations).
The Group uses the following criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase
irn credil risk:

T
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3 Risk Management Policles [Continued)

= significan! inchéasa in probability of defaull since the ongenation dale;

o backsiop of 30 days past due (OPD). OPD value s the maximem of DPD interest and DPD principal
of the lnan taking into sccount any delay in regaymant.
» tofal probability of default in the fext year exceeds cartain threshold dependent on the loan segmant

Generating the ferm skruciure of FD

The Group employs statistical models o analyse the dala collecied and generate estimates of the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected fo change as a result of the
passage of lime.

Determining whether credif risk has increased sigrificantly

Thi Group assesses whether credil risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each
reporting period, Determining whether an increase in credil risk is significant depends on the
characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, What is considered significant will differ
for different types of lending, in particular babween corporate and retail.

The credit risk may also be deemed t0 have increased significantly since initial recognition based
on qualitative factors linked to the Group's credit risk management processes thal may not
otherwise be fully reflected in ils quantitative analysis on a timely basis, This will be the case for
exposures that meet cerlain hightened risk criteria. Such qualitalive factors are based on its expen
judgement and relevant historical experience.

Az a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credil rigk occurs no later than
whan an assel is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the
number of days since the earlies! elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been
received, Due dates are delermined withoul considering any grace period thal might be available
to the borrowes.

if there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to iniial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns 1o being measured as 12-month ECL.
Some gualitative indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency of forbearance, may
b indicative of an increased risk of defaull thal persists afier the indicator itself has ceased to exist.
In these cases the Group delermines a probation period during which the financial assel is reguired
to demonstrate good behaviour 1o provide evidence that its credi risk has dedined sufficiently.
When contraciual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence thal the criteria for recogmizing
lifetime ECL are no longer mel includes hislory of up-to-date payment performance against the
modified contractual terms.

Dafirition of defacit
The Group considers a financial asset o be in default when:
# the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any malerial credit obligation to the Group.

exposure is subject to restructuring; or
» in bankrupicy

In assessng whether a borrower &5 in default, the Growp considers indicators that are:

# qualitalive = e.g. breaches of covenanis;

# quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same
borrower to the Group; and

+ based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may
vary over time 1o reflect changes in circumstances.
Incorporabion of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit
risk of an instrumem has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of
ECL.

™
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1 Rizk Management Policies {Continued)

Mominal effectve exchange rate (NEER), oil price, home price and budgel revenues variables are
selected lo be the main variables in the main modelling phase. These variables oughl to be
forecasted in diffarent scenarios,

Qil price, home price and budget revenues variables are forecasted by applying Auloregressiva
IMegrated Moving Average (p.d.q) (ARIMA)} model. The reason for applying this model is its
parsimonious nature and the abilty to capture dependent wvarations of wvariables whose
daterminants are not well documented.

In il price, baseling, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios are multiplied with 0.5, 0.3, 0.2 weights,
respectively. The reason for choosing these weights is that global oil prices hugely suffered from
historical negative shocks in the beginning of 2020 while the prices stabilized after the second
gquartar,

In the case of home price, basefing, oplimistic and pessimistic scenarios are multiplied with 0.5,
0.25, 0.25 weights respectively. Unlike oil price, home price is not severely affected by pandemic
and it has an overall upward bias. Thus, opltimistic and pessimistic scenarios are multiplied with
aqual weights,

Finalky, MEER furmned out o be the main macro variable which appeared to be statistically significant
in all models. For baseling, optimistic and pessimistic scenarios the Group applies 0.4, 0.4 and 0.2
weights. Analysis of historical behaviour of this macro variable (NEER) leads o a conclusion that it
iz a very slable index = the volatility is limited and the only significant deviation from this pattern
was observed in 2015 as a result of devaluation of Azerbaijan Manat, Due to the fact that it was a
political decision of the authorities, It Iz assumed thal nominal effective exchange rate will confinue
1o fodlow flat trend, Therefore, for the purpose of ECL calculation the value of the macro variable
was constant for the base scenano and equal to the value observed al ECL calculation date. Two
remaining scenarios (oplimistic and pessimistic) wera obtained as an upside and downside
divergence from the base scenario depending on historical standard deviation and average as wall
as on time that passes from the calculation date.

Predicted relationships between the key indicator and default and loss rates on varous portfolios
of financial assets have been developed based on analysing historical data over the past ten years.

Modified financial asseis

The contraciual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market
conditions, cusiomer relention and ather faclors not related to 8 curreni or potential credit
delerioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be
derecognised and the renegoliated loan recognised as a new loan at fair value in accordance with
the accounting policy sel oul in Mote 3{H).

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in
derecognition, the determination of whether the assel's credit risk has increased significanily
reflects comparisan of:

= s remaining lfatimea PO al tha reporting date based on the modified terms; with
= the remaining lfetime PD estimated based on dala al initial recognition and the original
coniractual lerms.

When maodification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated to Stage 1
(assuming it is not credit-impakred at that time).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as “forbearance
activities’) to maximise collection opporunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Group's
forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the deblor is currently in
default on its debl or if there is a high risk of defaull, there is evidence that the deblor made all
reasonable efforts to pay under the original contraciual terms and the debtor is expected to be able
to meet the revised ferms.,

TH
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Ky Risk Management Policles (Continued)

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments
and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the
forbearance poficy.

For financial assels modified as part of the Group's forbearance policy, the estimale of PD reflects
whether the modification has improved or restored the Group's ability to collect interest and principal
and the Group's previous experience of similar forbearance acton. As parl of this process, the
Group evaluates the borrower's payment performance against the modified contractual terms and
considers various behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance s a qualitative Indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an
axpeciation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired (see Note
3(fYiv), A customer needs to demonsirate consistently good payment behavior over a period of lime
befare the exposure is no longer considered to be credit-impaired/ in default or the PD is considered
to have decreased such that the loss allowance reveris 1o being measured at an amount egual o
12-month ECL.

Measwrement of ECL
The key inputs into the measuremeant of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

= probability of default (PD);
s loss given defaull (LGD);
» exposure at defaull (EAD).

ECL is calculated on a month-by-month basis using monthly PD, LGD and EAD. ECL for exposures
in Stage 1 represents the sum of the 12-months ECL and for axposures in Stage 2 the sum of the
lifetime ECL.

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading “Generating the term
structure of PD".

The Group estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against
dafaulted counterparties, Depending upon segment, time interval changes from 2012 to November
2021. Generally, LGD calculations were computed in the following sequence:

Firstly, base recovery rate curves were buill for portfolios, then they were separated into
homogeneous group default pools in lerms of recoveries, Also, the Group eslimaled remaining
recovery for unfinished defaults based on closed cases. Generally, recovery rates depending on
MID {manth in default) were properly calculated.

Exposure at the time of default was calculated based on CCF (credit conversion factor) moded and
contraciual repayment schedules. General approach per product type was estimated by:

Far non-revolving loan products, the Group used full repayment schedule and simplified repayment
schedule method, but off-batance items CCF was modelled. In the calculation of CCF values fioors
and caps were applied to reduce influence of outhiers,

For revolving loan products, the Group used model based EAD.

Where modelling of a paramater is carmed out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics. In order o reflect different characteristics
of portfolio's segments in modelling process, exposures were divided into five major segments, four
of which were Included in source data and one additional was defined for credit card axposures,
while guarantees were added 1o the SME segment.
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3 Rizsk Management Policies ([Continued)

The logic of how final segmentation was delermined is shown in the table below:

Source Loan Segment Exposure type Final Loan Sagment
Cored Credit cand
Retail
Loan Ftail
Micro Loan Micro
Mg Loan Mortgage
SME Loan i
N Gapranias

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular group
remain appropriately homogeneous.

For porticlios in respect of which the Group has limiled historical data, external benchmark
information is used to supplement the imernally available data. The portiiolios for which external
benchmark information represents a significant input into measurement of ECL are as follows.

External benchmarks used

- Exposurg PD LGD

Cash and cash aquivabents 238,101 Moody's defaull tudy SAP recovery studies
Loans to banks 32 480 Moody's defaull shudy S4P recowiry studies
Irvesirment secuntias 36,804 Moody's defaull study SAP recovery studies

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosure sel oul in the lable below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar
financial instruments, irespective of whether they are offsel in the consolidated statement of
financzal position.

31 December 2021
Gross Met amountof Related amounts not offset

armounts of financkal In the consolidated
l‘ﬂﬂﬂr‘llﬂd asseisliabilities statement of financial
financial presented in the positicn

asseliliability consolldated Financial Cash

Mt

statement of instrumants collateral amount

ity =t =
Loans to customers 36,527 36,527 : (36,527)

Total financial assets 36,527 16,527 - [38.527) <
Currant accounts and deposits

from customers (45.196) (45, 196) 36,527 - {8.669)
Total financial iabilities (45,196) (45,196) 36,527 - (8.660)
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31 Risk Management Policies (Continued)

31 Decembear 2020
Gross  Met amountof  Related amounts not offsat
armounis of financial in the consolidated
recognised asselsfliabilities statemant of financial
financial presented in the position
assetiliability mnlnlldatu:! Financial Cash Mei
statement
Types of financial Arnancial  TRANMeOLS m o
assets/labilities peos i on
Loans to custorms 25,629 25,620 . {25.629) -
Total financial assets 25,8629 15620 - [25,829) =
Current accounts and deposils
from customers {30.975) {308,875) 26,629 = (14,348}
Total financial liabilities (39,975} {39,975) 25,620 - (14,348)

(b)  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other
financial commidments associated with financial instruments &5 they aciually fall dea.

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Group will ancounter difficulty in mesting obligations associated with
its financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel. Liquidity risk
exisls when the maturities of assets and labilities do not match, The matching andf-or controlied
mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental (o liquidity
management. i is unusual for financial institutions ever 1o be completely matched, since business
transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially
enhances profilability, but can also increase the risk of losses.

The Group maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be availlable
at il times to honour all cash flow obligations as they become due. The liquidity poficy is reviewed
and approved by the Management Board.

The Group seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising long- and
shori-term loans from other banks, core corporate and reladl customer deposits, accompanied by
diversified portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respand quickly and efficiently 1o
unforesesn lquidity requirements.

The liquidity managerment policy requires:

» projecting cash flows by major currencies and taking info account the leved of liquid assets
necessary in relation thereto

= maintaining a diverse range of funding sources
= managing the concentration and profile of debts
=« mainfaining debt financing plans

* maimaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets thal can easily be liquidated as
protection against any interruption o cash flow

# mainaining liquidity and funding contingency plans
=  monitoring liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements

Bl
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3 Risk Management Policies ({Continued)

The Treasury Department receives information from business units regarding the liquidity profile of
their financial assels and liabilities and detais of oiher projected cash flows arising from projecied
future business. The Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portiolio of short-term
liguid assets o be mainiained, largely made up of loans to banks and oiher inter-bank facilifties, to
ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Group as a whale,

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular ligquidity stress flesting under a variety of
scenarios covening both normal and more severe markel conditions, is performed by the Treasury
Depariment. Under normal market cenditions, liquidity reports covering the liquidity position are
presented (o senior management on a weekly basis. Decisions on liguidity management are made
by the ALMC and implemented by the Treasury Departmant.

The following tables show the analysis, by confraciual maturifies of financial assels, liabilities and
credit-related commitments on the basis of thelr earliest possible expected malurity. For issuwed
financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated to the earliest
period in which the guarantee can be called.

The ALMC controls these types of riske by means of maturity analysis, determining the Group's
strategy for the next financial period. Current liquidity is managed by the Treasury Depaniment,
which deals in the money markels for current liquidity support and cash flow optimization.

In grder o manage liquidity risk, the Group performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows
on clients’ and banking operations, which is a part of assetsfiabilities management process, Tha
Managemen! Board sels limits on the minimum proporion of maturing funds available to meet
deposil withdrawals and on the minimum level on interbank and other bomrowing Tacilities that
should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

An analysis of the liquidity and interest rate risks i presented in the following lable. The presentation
below is based upon the information provided internally to key management personnel of the Group,
Cwerdue inferest of loans 1o customers is included in category 1 yvear 1o 5 years in the fable below.
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Bank Respublika OJ5C
Nates fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amouris are presented in thousands of Azerbajani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

3 Risk Managemeant Policies {Continued)

Interest rate gaps are managed principally through refinancing of interest bearing liabdlities maturing in
respective maturity bands with liabilities at equal or lower interest rales,

In accordance with Azerbaijani legislation, individuals and legal entittes can withdraw their lerm
deposits at any time, forfeiting in most of the cases the accrued interesl. These deposits are ciassified
in accordance with thelr siated maturity dates, The Management of the Group does not expect that
individuals and legal entities withdraw their lerm deposits before thair stated malturity dates.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial
assets and liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ lo those estimates.
of interes! rates determined at the end of the reparting period.

The maturity analysis does nol reflect the historical stability of current accounts. Their liquidation has
historically taken place over a longer period than indicated in the tables above. These balances are
included in amaounts dus in less than one month in the tables above, Managemen! belleves thal in spite
of & substantial portion of customer accounts being on demand, diversification of these deposils by
number and type of depositors, and the past experience of the Group indicates that these customer
accounts provide a long-term and stable source of funding for the Group.

The following tables detad the Group's remaining contractual maturity for 18 non-derivative financial
assets and liabiliies with agreed repayment perods, The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of inancial assets and liabilties based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The tables include bolh interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves af the
end of the reporting period.
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Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbaffani Manals, unless otherwise staled)

n Risk Management Policles (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee confracts are the maximum ameounts the Group
could be forced to settle under the amangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations ai the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject o change depending on the probability of the
eounterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

(el Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Group's eamings or capital or its ability to meet business cbjectives
will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of markel rates or prices. Market risk
covers interes! rale risk, currency risk, credit spreads, commaodity prices and equity prices that the
Group is exposed to. There have been no changes as to the way the Group measuras risk or to the
risk it is exposed or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured,

{i) Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flonws
ar the fair values of financial instruments. The ALMC on reguiar basis reviews the overall interest
rale spreads by detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities interest rale siruciure. The Group is
constantly manitoring interest rate gap. As of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group
does not consider itself exposed (o significant interest rate risk or consequential cash flow risk since
micst of the financial assets and liabilities are with fixed rates.

{ii}  Currency risk

Currency risk |s defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluciuate due lo
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group is exposed 1o the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

h2



Bank Respublika OJSC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stafements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presenied in thousands of Azerbaifan! Manals, unless otherwise slated)

M Risk Management Policies ([Continued)

The ALMC controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated
bagis of AZN devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Group an
opportunity to minimize losses from significant currency rates fuctuations towards its national
currency. The Treasury Depariment performs daily monitoning of the Group's open currency
position with the aim to match the requirements of the Cenitral Bank of the Republic of Azerbaljan

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assels and liabilites

as at 31 December 2021;

AZM uso EUR Other Taotal
currancies
ASBETS
Cash and cash eguivalants 76,732 1B7 678 21,024 2,063 287,502
Loans lo banks 8410 23 492 578 32,480
Loans 0 customars G44,018  TO.GZE 536 - M58D
imsastiment securitias 2,328 24 476 - - 36,604
Other financial assels 6,786 1,192 361 332 B.E81
Total assels 738,264 317 464 22 504 2,385 1,080,647
LIABILITIES
Amounits dua to credit instilutions BET 177 16 0 1,180
Cument accounis and deposits from customsars 390,147 404 441 22,088 1174  H22 850
lasued bonds 10,038 - - 10,038
Subordinated barrowings - 20,646 - - 20,646
Cither bormowed funds 174,524 - - - 174524
Leass |iabilities 3,295 - - 3,295
Dhor Rrancial Ebilities 5.808 2,578 407 12 8,895
Total liabilities 584,880 432,842 22.511 1,186 1,041,428
MHet position 153,305 (115378} (7} 1,200
The affect of darivatives hedd for risk
management (120,000) 120,000 - -
Met position after derivatives held for risk
management purposes 33,385 4632 T 1,208
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Bank Respublika OJSC

Notes to the Consolldated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
iAmounts are preésented in thousands of Azerbailani Manats, urless otherwise slated)

£ Risk Management Policies (Continued)

The following table shows the foreign currency structure of financial assets and labilities as at

1 Decembear 2020:
AZN usp EUR Other  Total
CUMENCins
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 140,632 13,581 ¥ 054 2,365 383 (32
Loans to banks 3,343 24,008 FEch - 28,082
Loans 1o cusiomers 388 509 57,109 116 S
Irveatmianl securitias 1,316 33|z 25 35,153
Other financial assels B3B3 347 T 22 BaT2
Total assets 530,273 : J26.907 27,998 2,387 B98,563
LIABILITIES
Amounts due o cridil institutions 138 Th 203 1,016
Current accounts and depoesits from cusiomars 266, 401 410,457 27 6d4 1827 706519
Subordinated borowings - 19,508 - 19,508
Other borrowed funds 135,103 . - 135,703
Leasa labilites 2.5 - . - 2,501
Dihar financial liabllites 3,260 1,050 .155 Fi 4472
Total liabilities 408604 431,081 28002 1,934 868,721
Net pesition 130,579 (102,184) (6) 453
The effect of defvatives hald for risk
PanEgement (110.186) 110,186
Net position after derivatives held for risk
managemenl purposes 20,393 8,002 (&) 453
Currency risk sensitivity analysis

A weakening of AZN, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31 December 2024
and 2020, would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below,
This analysis is on a net-of-tax basis, and is based on foreign currency exchange rale variances
that the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis

assumes thal all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

0% (2020: 30%) appreciation of USD against AFN
0% (2020: 30%) appraciation of EUR against AZN

2021

2020

1.067

—

1.920
(1)

A strengthening of AZN against the above currencies at 31 December 2021 and 2020 would have
had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies io the amounis shown above, on the

basis that all siher variables remained constant,

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above lables demonsirate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions
remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumplions and other factors. It
should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should

nol be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.
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Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
{(Amounts are presenied in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwizse stated)

kg Risk Management Policies {Continued)

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group's assets and liabilities are
actively managed. Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary at the time that any
actual market movement occurs. For example, the Group's financial risk management strategy aims
to manage the exposure lo market fluctuations. As investment markets rmove pas! various frigger
levels, management actions could include selling invesiments, changing investment portfolio
allocation and taking other protective action. Consequently. the actual impact of a change in the
assumplions may not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. In these circumstances, the different measurement
bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in shareholders’ equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses Include the use of hypothetical market
movements to demonstrate potential risk that only reprasant the Group's view of possible near-lerm
market changes that cannol be predicted with any certainly; and the assumpticn that all interest
rales move in an identical fashion.

32 Capital Risk Management

The Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic (CBAR) requires banks to maintain certain regulatory
ratios based on regulatory reporting standards

The objectives of management when managing the Bank's and Group's capital are (i) to comply
with the capital requirements set by the CBAR, (i) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and (i) to maintain a sufficient capital base to achieve a capital adequacy ratio based
on Basel Capital Accord of at least 8%.

Under the current regulatory capital requirements set by the CBAR banks have to: (a) hold the
minimum level of total statutory capital of AZN 50,000 thousand (31 December 2020 AZN 50,000
thausand): (b) maintain & ratio of regulatory capital to risk weighted assets (“statutory capital ratic”)
at or above a prescribed minimum of 10% (31 December 2020: 9%) and {c) maintain a ratio of Tier-
1 capital to the risk-weighted assets (the ‘Tier-1 capdal ratio’) at or above the prescribed minimum
aof 5% (31 December 2020: 5%).

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank was in compliance with all these ratios except for maximum
credil exposure of a Bank on unsecured loan per a single borrower which was 54.73% (2020:
60.55%) of the Bank's Tier 1 capital (ratio should not exceed 10% of Tier 1) and was the result of

investment io the bonds of government related company. However, waiver for that ratio aobtained
from CBAR in 2020 for the Ifetime of mentioned investment.

The calculation of capital adequacy based on the prudential reports prepared by the Group in
accordance with the prudential regulations set by the CBAR was as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020

Total stabwory capital 104 484 83,893
Risk-weighted assets 764,816 501,572
Capital adequacy ratio (%) 13.66% 1B.73%

The regulatory guidelines on capital adequacy are mostly based on Basel Capital Accord
requiremants with some differences redated to inclusion of additional components nto tolal capital
as well as to calculation of allowance for impairment losses on loans to cusiomers, which is
delesrined per the prudential rules on loan loss provisioning.
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Bank Respublika OJSC
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaijani Manals, unless otherwise staled)

33 Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Group is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk im order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of
credit risk, are not reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group uses the same credit conirol and management policies in underiaking off-balance sheet
commilments as it does for on-balance operations.

The coniractual amounds of credit relaled commitments are sel oul in the following table by
calegary. The amounis reflected in the table for credil related commitments assume thal amounts
are fully advanced. The amounts reflected in the table for guarantees and letters of credit represent
the maximum accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if the counterparties
falled completely to perform as contracied,

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, credit-related commilments comprise:

31 Dacember 31 December
20 2020

Credit-related commitments
Commitments on loans and wused credit ines 15,068 200108
Guaranbeos ssued and samilar commiirments 20,258 16,104
35,366 36,212

Legal proceedings

Im the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to legal actions and complainis.
Management believes that the ullimate liability, f any, arsing from such actions or complaints will
not have 8 material adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations.

Taxation

The taxalion system in Azerbaijan is relatively new and is characterized by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradictory and
subject fo varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and
investigation by various levels of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines and
interesi charges. A tax year generally remains open for review by the tax authorities for three
subsequent calendar vears; however, under cerlain circumstances a lax year may remain open
lorger.

These circumsiances may create 1ax risks in the Republic of Azerbaijan thal are substantially more
significant than in other coundries. Management believes thal it has provided adequately for fax
liabilities based on its interpreiations of applicable Azerbaijani tax legislation, official
pronouncemeants and court decisions. Howevear, the interpretations of the relevant authorlies could
differ and the effect on the financial position, if the authorities were succassful in enforcing their
interpretations, could be significant.

Operating environment

Cperational risk is 1he risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variely of causes associated
with the Group's processes, personnel, lechnology and infrastructure, and from external factors
other than credit, markel and hiquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepled standards of corporate behaviour. Operational nisks arise
from all of the Group's operations, The Group’s objeclive is o manage operational risk 30 a5 to
balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Group's reputation with overall cost
effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, the Group policy requires compliance with all applicable
legal and regulatony regqurements.

The Group manages operational risk by establishing internal contrals that management determines
o be necessary in each area of its operations.




Bank Respublika OJSC

MNotes fo the Consolidafed Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbafani Manals, unless otherwise staled)

34 Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Compliance with covenants

The Group has agreed to comply with cerain financial and business covenants in vanous inancing

and similar agreements.

Az al 31 December 2021 the Group was in breach of certain covenant with bwo financing
arangemeanis with ouistanding balances amounting 1o AZN 38 222 thousand (31 December 2020
twio financing arrangements with outstanding balances amounting 10 AZN 12,498 thousand). Group
abtained all relevant waivers in 2021, so that borrowings are nof payable on demand as at 31
December 2021. (31 December 2020 no borrowings are payable on demand),

34 Non-Controlling Interest

The foflowing table provides mformation about subsidiary thal has non-comrolling interest that is

material {o the Group:
Dividin
Place of Proporti Proporticn Profit or Accumu-  ds paid
business on of of non- ioas atiribue. lated nen-  to non-
{and country non-  contralling tabie to controlling  controll
of incorpe-  coniroll interest's mntmlll:n interest in ing
ration If ing vioting int !I the interest
different) interest rights hald subsidiary  during
the year
Year ended 31 December 2021
Baki Sigorta OJSC :P:m 49% 49% {470) 4,174
Year ended 31 December 2020
o The Repubis
Baki Sigora OJSC of Azedbaijan 49% 49% 78 4844 -
The summarised financial informalion of the subsidiary was as follows:
Profiy Total Cash
MNan- Mon- P COMmpre-
'D"“ul current Hﬁ::rl::: current o fioss) hensve flows
assels liabilities incomal
loss)
¥ear endod
11 D bar 2021 9,508 1,735 25 2,887 5843 {950) (958 [1.292)
Baki Sigorta OJ5C 4,654 B50 158 1,402 2853 {470) (4T} (633)
Year ended
31 December 2020 8174 2450 164 1,443 3,129 158 158 1,038
Bakl Sigorta OJ5C 4,005 1,201 80 TaF 1,533 TG TG 508




Bank Respublika 0JSC
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 Decomber 2021
{Amounis are presented in thousands of Azerbajani Manals, unless otherwise slated)

35 Related Party Transactions

Transactions batween the Group and its subsidiary have been eliminated on consolidation and are
nol disclosed in this Note. The oulstanding balances and the related average effective interest rates
3% at 31 December 2021 and related profit or loss amounts of transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021 with related parties are as follows:

Share-  Entities under Key management Total
holders  common control parsonnal of the Amgut
Group
Amount  Amouwnt Average  Amount Average
effective effective
interast interest
rate, % rate, %
Consolidated statement of
financlal position
ASSETS
Lowns lo cusiomars
Principal balance . 5,400 5% 511 13% 5943
Loss allowance - (155} {5) (160}
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and deposits 14 1,788 4% 1,392 1% 5,587
from euslomers
Items not recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
Guarantees givan (expires in 3 - 191 - 1M
manthis)
Commitments on loans and = 1.660 - 1,860
unused credit lines
Profit (loss)
Interest ncoms - 343 36 Te
Intenest exnpense - {184) (16} (210)
Fae and commission expensa . - - -
Recovery of - 132 [5) 127
impairmentyimpairment bossns )
Opivating expanses - - {1,674} {1,674}

—

Sharehoiders with mare than 20% ownership of the Group's shares have been disclosed in the
lable. Entities wnder common contrel are companies where key shareholders have control or
significant influence.

2|
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -31 December 2021
(Amounts are presented in thousands of Azerbaiiani Manats, unless otherwise staled)

as Related Party Transactions (Continued)

The outstanding balances and the related average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2020
and related profit or loss amounts of transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 with related
parties are as follows:

Share- Entities under comman Kay managament Total

holdars control personnel of the amount
Group
Amount Amount Average Amount Average
affective effective
interest interest
rate, % rate, %
Consolidated statement of
financial position
ASRETS
Loans bo custoimers
Frincipal balanca & 6,349 B% 187 10% 6,541
Loss allowance (4) (283) = {287
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and deposits
from cusiomers 1.570 GE 1% B5E A% 2,505
items not recognised In the
consolidated staterment of
financial position
Guaranieas givin (expires in 3
monihs) - 21 - 21
Commitments on loans and
unused credil lines 5 b 5 18
Profit (loss)
Inlerasi income - 381 1 3p2
Inerest expense | 346) (1) (6} {353)
Fee and commission axpense - [(323) . {323)
Impairmant losses (2} (113) 3 {111)
Orperaling expenses - - {1,458) (1,458)

Total remuneration included in personnel expenses for the yvears anded 21 December 2021 and
2020 is as follows:

2021 2020
Short-tarm employee benefits 1554 1336
Pension and other contributions ) 120 122
1,674 1.458

These amounts include cash and non-cash benefits in respect of members of the Board of Directars
and the Managemeni Board.
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36 Fair Values Disclosures

IFRS defines fair value as the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a
ltability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurament date.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis.,

The Group measures fair values using the following falr value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measuraments:

L Level 1. quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active markel for an identical
instrument.

. Leved 2: inputs other than quoles prices included within Level 1 that are observable
either directly (i.e.. as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices), This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instrumants;
quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; of
ather valuation lechniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable
from markel data,

. Level 3: inpuls that are unobservable, This category includes all instruments whera
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on chservable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumplions are required to reflect differences between the
nstruments,

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2021, by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized. The
amounis are based on the values recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position:

Level 1 Level 3 Total
investment securities designated as at FVOC - equity o ] 1.088 1.088
instruments
Dervative assels - 1,961 1,561
Desivative liabilities : (1.157) {1,157

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2020, by
ihe level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized. The
amounts are based on the values recognised in the consaolidated statement of financial position;

Level 1 Level 3 Total
Invesiment securities designated as at FVOC) - Boquity - 1.0BE 1,084
instremants
Derivative assels - 2377 2,377
Derivative liabfities - (313} (313)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the pariod,
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38 Fair Values Disclosures {Continued)

The follewing table shows a reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2021 for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 3
Financlal instruments at Financial Total
fair value through profit or  instruments at
loss fair value
through othor
compréehensive
Income
Derivative  Derivative Equity
assats labilities invastments
Balance at baginning of the year 2,377 {313} 1.088 3,152
Unrealized changs in fair value of derivative
financial instruments (416) (B44) . . :
Balance at end of the year 1,961 (1,157) 1.088 1299

The following table shows a reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2020 for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hisrarchy:

Level 3
Financial Instruments at Financial Total
fair value through profit ¢  instruments at
loss fair value
through other
comprehensive
incomea
Derivative  Derivative Equity
asgats labilities Investments
Balance a1 beginning of the year . {1,310 T (534)
Unrealized change in fair value of derivative
financial instrurments 16684 1,188 = 2.Ba2
Purchasas 693 {201) 313 805
Effect of changes in exchange rates - - (1) (1}
Balance al end of the year 2377 (313) 1,088 3152

As parl of its trading activities, the Group enters into OTC-structured derivatives (primarily interast
rale Cross cumency swaps indexed to credil spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates)
with international financlal institutions and domestic banks. Some of these instruments are valued
using modals with significant unobservable inputs, principally expected long-term volatilities and
expecled correlations between different underlyings,

L1]]
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36 Fair Values Disclosures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, to determine the fair value of the swaps, management assumed interest
rates within the range of 5.28%-6.01% and 0.40%-1.06% in AZN and USD, respectively (31
December 2020: within the range of 7.87%-056% and 0.05%-3.04% in AZN and USD,
respeciively).

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different
methodelogies or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair valus,

The following table analyses the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value, by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair vaiue measurement is calegorized as at
31 December 2021:

Level 2 Level 3 Total fair Total
values carmylng
o _ amount
ASSETS

Investment securilies ara12 - Ir412 36,504
Loans to banks 33523 - 33,523 J2.480
Loans o custhomears - 721,640 721,640 715,180

LIABILITIES
Curment acoounts and deposils from 820261 B22 850

Ccuslomens:

- Cument accounts and demand daposits 425 357 - 425,357 425,357
- Team deposits = 3454 004 04 904 397 403
Subordinated bomowings 22,360 22,360 20,646
Other bomowed funds 173,830 - 173,830 174,524

The following table analyses the fair value of financial Inslruments not measured at fair value, by
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorized as at
31 December 2020:

Lawvel 2 Level 3 Total fair Tatal
villues carrying
- amount
ASSETS

Liwiwnes {0 banks 26,993 - 26,603 25,082
Loans to customears - 445 997 445 997 442 A4
Invesirmant securibies 35,324 - 35,324 A5.153

LIABILITIES
Current accounts and deposits from o6, 741 TG 518

Customans:

- Current accounts and demand deposits 297 474 - 392,474 392474
= Tewmn deposits . 214,287 314,267 314,045
Subordinated bomowings 18,680 19,680 19,508
Other Borrowed funds 135,504 135,504 135,703

The Group uses the following information in cakculation of fair value of financial instruments nat
measured al fair value based on the type of instrument and availability of observable dala in the
relevant market in the order of priority (from the most to tha leasi observable data)

* Loans to banks and Amounts due fo credit institutions: analogical markel rates disclosed
in the statistical bulletin issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan

= Investment securities: depending on the measurement Level, Group uses the price of the
mstrument as of reporting date based on daily quetations or applies income approach using
identical assets,
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a6 Fair Values Disclosures (Continued)

* Loans o customers: expected present value lechniqgue, where risk premisvm s
mcorparated either into contractual cash fiows or into discount rate, defined as the risk-frea
rate plus the risk premium determined for loan portfolics based on similar characteristics
{from credit risk quality point of view). The Group also benchmarks discount rates to
interest rales observable from the published regulalory statistics on loans based on
redevant maturity.,

« Current accounts and deposits from customers, Other borrowed funds: Current accounts
are short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities and their carrying value approximate fair
valua.

Term-deposits, fair value of amount due to banks, credit institutions and govemnmant funds
's estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturity.

* Borrowings from government funds, where no observable rates are available a Bank will
price those instruments at base rate (refinancing or government bond rates) adjusted for
nen-performance risk {credit risk premium) of the Bank.

= Bonds issued: those with daily quatations for identical assets are in Level 1 measuremeant
category and the price as of reporting date would be taken as such for disclosure purpose,
The price of the bond is estimated by comparing it to corporate bonds with an active market,
and that have similar maturities, coupon rates, and credit rating. The discount rate is
determined as the risk free rate + credit risk premium of the lssuer

As al 31 December 2021, to determine the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair
value, management used inlerest rates within the range of 8%-11% and 4%-5% in AZM and forelgn
currencies, respectively for loans to customers (31 December 2020: range of 8.27%-16.00% and
4.98%-B8.53% in AZN and foreign currencies, respectively), and within the range of 6%-8% and 1%-
2% In AZN and foreign currencies, respectively for deposits fram customer (31 December 2020
within range of 5.92%-8.00% and 1.05%-2.15% in AZN and foreign currencies, respectively).

The estimates of fair value are intendad to approximate the price that would be received to sell an
assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, However, given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair
value should not be interpreted as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or transfer of
liabifities.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. Far all other financial instruments the Group
determines fair values using other valuation lechniques.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liablity in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement dats,

Valuation lechniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison 1o
similar instruments for which market observable prices exisi, Assumptions and inputs used in
valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interast rates. credit spreads and other
premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foraign currency exchange rates,
equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm's length.
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37 Events after the End of the Reparting Period

Financing activities. On 18 February 2022, the Group issued bonds at amount of AZN 15,000,000
{15,000 number of bonds with nominal value AZN 1.000), inferest-bearing bonds in AZN maturing
on 18 February 2024. The issuance was cenducted through public placement, completely
purchased by differant investors and bonds are fisted on Baku Stock Exchange. Coupon rale is
8.5%. payable semi-annually,

On 28 April 2022, the Group issued bonds at amount of AZN 15,000,000 {15,000 number of bonds
with nominal value AZN 1,000), interest-bearing bonds in AZN maturing on 28 April 2024, The
issuance was conducled through public placement, completely purchased by different investors
and bonds are listed on Baku Stock Exchange. Coupon rate is 8.5%, payable semi-annually,

According ta the individual synthetic locai currency term loan facility agreement the Group borrowed
a lotal of 15,000,000 USD in the period betwean January 2022 and April 2022 fram the Eurcpean
Fund for Southeast Europe {EFSE)}

Dividends. In January 2022 the Group declared and paid dividends in the amounts of AFM 12
miflicn.

negative economic impact on the Russian Federation. As of the date of these financigl slatements,
the Group's total exposure 1o Russian financial markets was immaterial: mainty comprised of small
amounis related to money transfer syslems and some customers partially involved in trade
operalions and compensated by other scurces of income. The Group's management is thoroughly
manitaring the economic situation in the current enviranment and taking precautionary measures in
ofder o manage associated risks




